
Town Council Work Session
Tuesday, March 24, 2020, 5:00 PM 

Council Chambers
150 Ski Hill Road

Breckenridge, Colorado

I. PLANNING COMMISSION DECISIONS (5:00-5:05pm)
Planning Commission Decisions

II. LEGISLATIVE REVIEW (5:05-5:40pm)
St. John's Development Agreement (Second Reading)
Sustainable Building Code (Second Reading) - Item to be continued
Employee Generation Code Amendment (Second Reading) - Item to be continued
Policy 24A/R Social Community Regarding Amenity Space and Policy 25R Transit (Second
Reading)
Public Accommodation Tax Ordinance (Second Reading) - Item To Be Continued
Council Rules Amendment (Resolution)
Appointment of the Municipal Court Judge (Motion Only)

III. MANAGERS REPORT (5:40-6:10pm)
Public Projects Update
Parking and Transportation Update
Housing and Childcare Update
Committee Reports
COVID-19 Update

IV. PLANNING MATTERS (6:10-6:30pm)
Small Cell Options
Sustainability Update
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Memo                                         

To:  Breckenridge Town Council Members 

From:  Mark Truckey, Director of Community Development 

 Date: March 18, 2020 

Subject: Planning Commission Decisions of the March 17, 2020 Meeting 

DECISIONS FROM THE PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING, March 17, 2020: 
 
CLASS A APPLICATIONS: None. 
 
CLASS B APPLICATIONS: None. 
 
CLASS C APPLICATIONS: 
1.  Beaver Run Summer Conference Tents, 620 Village Rd, PL-2020-0036 
A proposal to install a 4,000 sq. ft. main tent, an 800 sq. ft. kitchen tent, a 100 sq. ft. entry tent, and a 
walkway/connector tent for use during the summer only.  The tent has been approved previously with 
the same design and location.  Approved. 
 
TOWN PROJECT HEARINGS:  
1.  Milne/McNamara House and Eberlein House Restoration, Relocation and Site Modifications Town 
Project, 102 N. Harris Street, PL-2020-0037 
A proposal to restore the historic Milne House which includes a new foundation and installation of a 
basement, relocation and restoration of the historic Eberlein House which includes a new foundation, 
outhouse relocation and restoration, installation of parking along the rear alley, new concrete steps and 
walkways, ADA accessibility, tree removal, landscaping, drainage modifications, and utility installations. 
Continued to the April 7, 2020 Planning Commission Meeting. 

 
OTHER: None. 
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PLANNING COMMISSION MEETING  

 

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. by Chair Gerard.  

  

ROLL CALL  

Christie Mathews-Leidal   Jim Lamb - Absent       Ron Schuman  

Mike Giller   Steve Gerard 

Dan Schroder  Lowell Moore 

  

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

With no changes, the March 3, 2020 Planning Commission Minutes were approved. 

 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

With no changes, the March 17, 2020 Planning Commission Agenda was approved. 

 

PUBLIC COMMENT ON HISTORIC PRESERVATION ISSUES: 

 No comments. 

 

WORK SESSIONS: 

1.  Housing Policy 24R 

Ms. Rex presented an overview of proposed revisions to Policy 24A/R regarding Social Community.  The 

Commissioners were asked for their feedback.  The following specific questions were asked of the 

Commission: 

1.  Does the Planning Commission support allowing a 10% density bonus for commercial and 

residential projects that mitigate 25% of their housing requirement on-site? Currently, this is 

allowed for residential projects for employee housing, but not for commercial projects (with a 

recent code change).  

2. Does the Commission have any additional comments or concerns? 

 

Commissioner Questions / Comments: 

Mr. Schroder: It seems to make sense and is important to mitigate employee generation. 35% is a great 

number to use. I support onsite at 25%. I support positive points beyond 35%. The 

strikethrough was a little confusing. I support as presented. (Ms. Rex: Were you supportive 

of the 10% for commercial and residential bonus?) Yes, I support the bonus. 

Mr. Schuman: I like the 35%, better than 65% or 25%. Support onsite 25%. This is really challenging but 

what you propose is really good. I support the onsite bonus. 

Mr. Giller: Good analysis. Is it comparable with other ski towns? Support 10% bonus for onsite, 25% 

and 35%. How do we address short-term rentals? (Ms. Rex: Since short-term rental is not a 

use per the Development Code we cannot tie it to that.) 

Mr. Gerard: I support 10% density bonus for commercial. On page 14. Fig. 1. Speak to kinds of units, 

should be clarified to rooms of units. On page 16. Second paragraph, definition of employee 

unit, should be descriptive of depth (Ms. Rex: We will clarify that definition.) Page 20. 

Employee generation? I agree with 35% for mitigation. I think the points for increased 

mitigation are good, will incentivize mitigation. 

Ms. Leidal: I agree we need more workforce housing. I support 10% bonus for commercial onsite. How 

will this policy work in relation to Policy 2 Land Use? such as in a land use district like 

Airport Road (where residential would receive negative points). We should not assess 

negative points for residential land use when it is required for mitigation. What is counted 

for floor area? You will need to clarify that. Page 20. Is the 350 sq. ft. only living area or is 

it garage and storage. Page 26, section A.3. This section is no longer applicable because we 

are getting rid of that table. Policy 24R. Section A. I don’t believe they should count 
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accessory units for points offsite. We should require all materials to be submitted 

electronically. 

 

Mr. Gerard opened the work session for public comment.  There were none and comments were closed. 

 

CONSENT CALENDAR: 

1.  Beaver Run Summer Conference Tents (LS), 620 Village Rd, PL-2020-0036 

 

With no call-ups, the Consent Calendar was approved as presented. 

 

PRELIMINARY HEARINGS: 

1.  New West Plaza (AKA Breck Central Market) (JL), 190 Stan Miller Drive, PL-2020-0044 

Mr. Lott presented a proposal to construct a 12,595 sq. ft. commercial building containing 2,554 sq. ft. of 

office and 9,419 sq. ft. of commercial. The proposal includes 41 new parking spaces and an easement for a 

future connection to the Blue River Rec Path. 

 

2.  Placer Flats Master Plan Amendment (JL), 190 Stan Miller Drive, PL-2020-0045 

Mr. Lott presented a proposal to modify the existing Placer Flats Master Plan to change language to increase 

the number of separate businesses allowed in one building. 

 

Staff has the following questions for the Commission: 

1. Does the Commission support positive six (+6) points for the construction of the trail and associated 

improvements? 

2. Does the Commission agree with allowing the parking to encroach slightly into the open space 

setback? 

3. Does the Commission support the proposed architecture as required by the Master Plan? If not, 

does the Commission support a modification to the Master Plan? 

4. Does the Commission agree with the preliminary points analysis? 

 

The two items were combined into one presentation because the projects are related to each other. 

 

Commissioner Questions: 

Mr. Leidal: I have four questions. 1. How much total SFEs will we have on lots 1 & 2? (Mr. Lott: 40.5 

SFEs) We should modify language of the Master Plan so there is no conflict with the 40 SFE 

maximum. 2. What is the head height in the crawl space? (Mr. Lott: I am not sure of that, but 

that could be a question for the architect.) 3. Do the other properties along highway 9 have 

buried power lines? (Mr. Lott: The town is planning to bury the lines at the Water Treatment 

Plant, to the south and along the McCain property. In some parts of town there are lines that  

go in and out of the ground between properties.) 3. Are the applicants asking for a parking 

reduction and using offsite parking? (Mr. Lott: A plat note exists that allows additional 

parking to be dedicated for Lot 2 within Lot 1. We are working with the applicant on this. 

They are not requesting to reduce parking.) 

Mr. Schroder: Under Architectural Compatibility in the Master Plan, it encourages American West 

architecture, what was the intent of this note? (Mr. Lott: We can research this but staff is 

unsure at this time.)  

Mr. Moore: My main concern is architecture because the proposal is modern. I checked out the site today 

and noticed the water plant and BBC have a more western architectural theme. 

Mr. Giller: Please bring up the Pg. 59 concept rendering. Can you speak to the amount of glass on this 

elevation? (Mr. Lott: American West architecture does not typically have this much glass.) 

(Ms. Puester: We do not have a definition for western architecture, it is up to interpretation 

of the Planning Commission.) I have concerns with the curtain glass that goes to the ground. 
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It could be raised a couple feet off the ground. 

Mr. Schuman: I have concerns with the architecture. Did staff recommend to change the Master Plan, are 

you comfortable with this change? (Mr. Lott: We are asking for feedback from the 

Commission on this since there are no definitions of these items in the code or existing master 

plan.) (Ms. Puester: Since they are already making changes to the Master Plan, if the 

Commission supports the design, you can suggest modifying the Master Plan note to better 

fit this.) 

Mr. Gerard: I like the concept of the rec path and can support +6 points but will it dump users on Stan 

Miller Drive? (Ms. Puester explained the future rec path alignment.)  

 

Lindsay Newman, Norris Design presented: 

This project includes food and beverage market and office space. It will be unique in Breckenridge. Ideally 

situated to future development sites, McCain and Stan Miller subs. Design transitions from the water plant to 

the BBC. The project will be inviting from the rec path. An elevator provides ADA access to the roof deck for 

all guests. 

 

Mark Provino, Provino Architecture:  

Project will serve as a central meeting point. I tried to design a building with a strong sense of place with a 

human scale. We have focused on the western and southern exposure with an inside/outside design. I have taken 

a non-literal approach to the architectural notes by blending traditional materials and forms in a modern 

building. We wanted to have a lot of transparency in the project. Pertaining to Christie’s question the crawl 

space is 4’ 11”, the basement is 8’0” in height. I looked at other similar projects in larger buildings in Denver 

and tried to utilize similar designs, including the amount of glass at the Denver Central Market. 

 

Ms. Leidal:  Thanks for the clarification on crawl space height. 

Mr. Giller: The Denver central market has nice glass but it does not go down to ground as there is a brick 

base at the bottom. 

 

Mr. Gerard opened the New West Plaza (AKA Breck Central Market) (JL), 190 Stan Miller Drive, PL-2020-

0044 for public comment. 

 

Mr. Lee Edwards, 180 Airport Road: 

Lot 2 was intended to support the Breckenridge Building Center (BBC) and the trade community. This concept 

is a 180 from that concept. There are two examples of New Western architecture directly adjacent to the project. 

Sharing a driveway is good but the BBC is already busy and the dumpster location will back up traffic on Stan 

Miller Drive. The driveway design will not be conducive to truck deliveries to the BBC. Do not over park the 

site. Most likely the BBC and the project will have opposite peak hours. What happens if the market concept 

does not work? Could it be a grocery store or some other use?  Will it be condominimized? 

 

Mr. Gerard closed public comment the New West Plaza (AKA Breck Central Market) (JL), 190 Stan Miller 

Drive, PL-2020-0044; and opened Public Comment Placer Flats Master Plan Amendment (JL), 190 Stan Miller 

Drive, PL-2020-0045. 

 

Mr. Lee Edwards, 180 Airport Road: 

We should put in other potential uses in the Master Plan to make sure its what we want to see. 

 

With no additional public comment, the public comment on Placer Flats Master Plan Amendment (JL), 190 

Stan Miller Drive, PL-2020-0045 was closed. 

 

Commissioner Comments: 

Ms. Leidal:  1. A lot of the rec path is offsite and precedent from Huron Landing was only +3 points. 
7



Town of Breckenridge  Date 3/17/2020 

Planning Commission Regular Meeting  Page 4 

Paving should be included based on that project. 2. Yes. 3. Does not meet architectural 

language. Does not meet gable provisions. Does not feature thick shingles. Does not meet 

Policy 5/R as it is too dissimilar. 4. Agree with points with exception of Policy 3 due to 

Master Plan that stipulates max of 40 SFEs and that should be modified. I am concerned with 

Policy 18 due to offsite parking and we would need a finding for this project. We would also 

need a parking study to justify a reduction in parking. If we amend the master plan, we should 

amend everything that is not compliant. 

Mr. Schroder: 1. Support +3 points and am open to +6 if path improvements are constructed. A new trail 

alignment would improve safety at the roundabout. 2. Okay with encroachment of parking. 

3. I do not believe it meets language. Master Plan language would need to be amended but I 

feel that the architecture is different from adjacent buildings. 4. Agree with point analysis. I 

support getting rid of four business limitation within the Master Plan. 

Mr. Moore:  1. I support +3 or more. 2. Okay with the parking encroachment. 3. Does not meet mountain 

west architecture. There should be gables. 4. I agree with the preliminary point analysis. I’m 

okay with the amount of uses. There should be some notation of use within the Master Plan 

language. Will this project be condominiumized?  

Mr. Giller:  1. I support +3, potentially +6 if path is constructed. 2. Okay 3. Too much glass and shed 

roofs are tall at the end the building. Support modifying the architectural language but not to 

the extent of what is proposed in the current architecture. 4. I agree. I support removing 

language limiting buildings to four businesses. Good start, need to see again. 

Mr. Schuman: 1. +3 not sure how valuable the connection is. 2. Not in favor of parking encroaching into 

open space 3. Too much glass on the project and I think it does not comply with the Master 

Plan language. The SFEs being transferred to the site is a problem. 4. Agree with preliminary 

point analysis. Disappointed with the amount of energy use proposed with heated space and 

this path connects to a net zero residential project, ironic. Lee’s comments about dumpster 

are valid. This site has too much programming. On the Master Plan Modification, I support 

getting rid of the four business maximum. It frustrates me we are changing the Master Plan 

to accommodate a development that overwhelms the site. This needs a second preliminary 

before going to Final. 

Mr. Gerard:  1. Support +3 points, the trail is an incredible public asset. 2. I am okay with the slight 

encroachment. We should have a recorded agreement pertaining to parking and access. 3. I 

like the building but it does not meet with what was contemplated onsite. Does not fit between 

the Building Center and Water plant. We need to look at all existing and proposed 

architecture, including what the McCain Master Plan states. 4. This is ready for needs another 

review before final. I agree with prelim point analysis. I agree with eliminating 4 business 

maximum in the Master Plan. We need to modify several sections of the Master Plan not just 

the limitations on the number of businesses. 

 

TOWN PROJECTS: 

1.  Milne/McNamara House and Eberlein House Restoration, Relocation, and Site Modifications (CL), 102 N. 

Harris Street, PL-2020-0037 

Mr. LaChance presented a proposal by the Breckenridge Heritage Alliance (BHA) to restore the historic Milne 

House which includes a new foundation and installation of a basement, relocation and restoration of the historic 

Eberlein House which includes a new foundation, outhouse relocation and restoration, installation of parking 

along the rear alley, new concrete steps and walkways, ADA accessibility, tree removal, landscaping, drainage 

modifications, and utility installations. 

 

Commissioner Questions: 

Ms. Leidal: I have four questions. 1. Previously I thought we counted enclosed secondary buildings in 

density. The outhouse square footage is not included, so please include that in the staff report 

for the Town Council. 2. The staff report mentions an arborist letter is required for tree 
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removal.  (Mr. LaChance: Thanks for pointing that out. We have not received that yet but we 

are going to get an arborist evaluation. We tend toward not imposing conditions on ourselves 

for Town Projects, but I will make sure it happens before any trees are removed.) 3. Sheet A-

3 shows heated outdoor sidewalk. Should we include a discussion of Policy 33R in the staff 

report? (Mr. LaChance: Heated sidewalks were removed from the scope of work and the site 

plan, so the note references heated sidewalks in small print on the elevations must have been 

accidentally not removed but it should be. I just missed that note in fine print.) 4. I understand 

SHPO recommendation is not binding but we should consult them. Similar to a traffic study. 

Mr. Schroder: No questions.   

Mr. Moore:  I don’t have any questions. All issues have been resolved. 

Mr. Giller: I wanted to go through the drawings. Is the front door of the Eberline being lost? (Mr. 

LaChance: It is being replaced.) It is a loss of historic fabric.  Are we losing 3 of the 5 historic 

windows? (Mr. LaChance: Yes, windows are proposed to be replaced, but the window 

openings are proposed to remain the same.) Windows and doors are character defining 

features. In regards to the interior, are we losing the floor? (Mr. LaChance: The plans specify 

it is being replaced with concrete.) Is the interior ceiling being lost? (Mr. LaChance: Yes, 

regarding interior work, I will defer to the architect to answer questions regarding interior 

work. As I mentioned in the staff report, staff does not review interior modifications.) Are 

we losing the interior wall and wall paper? (Mr. LaChance: To be consistent, I will defer to 

the architect to answer that because it is interior and our code does not apply.) Are we losing 

the interior millwork? (Mr. LaChance: Again, I will defer to architect because it is interior.) 

I support the BHA’s interpretation of the home, but I find it odd we are losing so much to 

interpret it. 

Mr. Schuman: No questions. 

Mr. Gerard: No questions at this time. 

 

Janet Sutterley, Architect: 

I do not have a presentation but will answer questions. To address Christie’s questions. Anywhere we have 

concrete sidewalks we have labeled them for future heated use, because that has not been approved by Council 

for phase 1.  But we do have to put the tubing in now which is why it’s called out on the plans.  We did not 

count the outhouse in any of the square footage calculations.  Addressing Mr. Giller’s questions, the front door 

is not original, so it’s not losing historic fabric. The two south side windows on Eberlein, we are replacing with 

wood windows. Neither window is original. You can tell this by the glass. The two windows we are planning 

to restore are on the west side. They are both single pane glass. We are not losing any historic fabric on the 

outside of this building.  In regards to interior, anyone who was on the site visit knows the building is already 

gutted down to the framing. My interpretation of the SOI standards is that you give an old structure new life.  

There’s no millwork in there currently.  We are talking about saving some wallpaper.  The ceiling is coming 

out, but we are reusing that fabric as interior finish throughout.  We are removing one interior wall but no other 

structure. We are not doing demolition work. I want to address some of the comments from the work session 

regarding SHPO and losing ratings. I personally went through all eight of the projects that got pulled, and none 

of them were downgraded due to interior work. One project that got downgraded for being moved was the Judge 

Silverthorn House, but Eberlein has already been moved to this site in 1989 so that is not an issue. We are not 

changing the character of the Milne House, there are very little changes proposed. I don’t think there’s any 

concern with SHPO. The site plan went through a very thorough review by Town of Breckenridge Engineering 

since the work session to conform with their rules and regulations, including the parking spaces and setbacks 

from the alley. Thanks Chapin for a thorough and concise staff report. 

 

Larissa O’Neil, Breckenridge Heritage Alliance: 

We are satisfied with the point analysis and the changes to the project. Preserving these homes is our top priority. 

We’ve worked with Janet to be sure the project meets the SOI standards for historic preservation.  Sadly, we 

don’t have much historic fabric from the interior of either of the buildings. The Milne house went through a 
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remodel in 1992 and all of the historic wall coverings were taken down. We do have the historic newspaper in 

two of the rooms. Eberlein does not have much left of the interior, before it came to the park it was a TV repair 

shop on Main Street. What you see in there is representative of what was left from its time as a TV repair shop 

in the 1980s. We are really trying to enhance the interpretation of the park.  We want to honor the families that 

lived there and the park’s history. We’re not talking about a traditional house-museum restoration for either of 

these buildings.  We talked with our board about whether or not we should try to bring Eberlein back to how it 

looked in the late 1870s but again we don’t have anything that represents the families.  But there will be 

interpretive signs throughout the park.  We feel it is important to have a presence in the park. We are talking 

about bringing 3 full time staff members to the park and one part time to support the park.  In the last couple 

years we had water damage to buildings because we were not there for several weeks.  Having a presence helps 

support maintenance and programs that we have in the park. 

 

Mr. LaChance: We will either need to remove the heated sidewalk notation or change the point analysis, 

need to have the applicant weigh in on that. 

 

 

The hearing was opened for public comments. 

 

Mr. Lee Edwards, 103 North High Street:  

Who is not in attendance? (Mr. Gerard: Mr. Lamb is not in attendance.) Please note my comments are directed 

to the Town Council. LUD 17 has no mention of institutional uses.  It was never stated there would be a use 

other than residential in this area. Tim Berry saying this is an institutional use is a pure smokescreen. This is a 

residential area, not an office park. When the property was deeded to the Town it was to be used as a park. I 

understand things change. There are 7 SFRs that come in off this alley. This is not a commercial area or an 

office area. I appreciate how we’re trying to use the buildings and make them part of the community. There are 

children that use that alley all that time to play. We have to consider what happens in a neighborhood. This is 

changing the use, it is not a park anymore. I totally disagree that building does not have any interior fabric, it 

certainly does. Town should contact SHPO on the interior. I know for a fact that historic preservation tax credits 

have been denied in town elsewhere because the interiors have been gutted, I was specifically told by SHPO.  

Doma 1898 and the Tony Harris House no longer qualify regardless of the exterior because of the interior.  

Using Eberlein for a public restroom and flex space makes no sense when the Community Center is across the 

street.  Why introduce another competing use in a residential neighborhood?  My suggestion is minimize 

parking, create two spaces. Leave the interior. Use cabin as additional storage. And use parking and bathrooms 

at the community center across the street. 

 

With no additional comments, the public comment was closed. 

 

Commissioner Comments / Questions: 

Ms. Leidal: I appreciate the presentations, comments and reports.  I’m excited about most of the 

improvements but I’m worried we could be unintentionally causing harm to the buildings 

and their historic ratings.  I’m disappointed we didn’t speak to SHPO about the interior.  I 

walked away from the previous meeting thinking they have the expertise and we have an 

opportunity to get more information and possibly modify if we need to.  In some cases interior 

can be more important than the exterior. I know our historic design standards don’t regulate 

the interior, but I had hoped for more information even though we don’t regulate it. 

Mr. Schroder: I support the passing point analysis and recommend it go to Town Council for their review. 

Mr. Moore:  I agree with Christie. I agree with Tim Berry’s interpretation for institutional use. Support 

referring to Town Council as presented. 

Mr. Giller: Thank you Chapin, Larissa, and Janet.  I take issue with much of what was said. The Secretary 

of the Interior states most properties change over time but those changes should be preserved. 

So the changes over time to the windows and doors should be saved. The floor, ceiling, and 
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finishes should be included.  I know the BHA issued an RFP for the interpretive planner, and 

that picture shows significant interior fabric.  The project demolishes the interior fabric of 

the house. I’m disappointed. Cannot support the project. 

Mr. Schuman:  I’m disappointed SHPO wasn’t consulted. Christie and Mike pointed out significant issues 

with the project. I don’t support as presented. 

Mr. Gerard: I agree with Christie and Mike. SHPO should be consulted because we want guidance, not 

approval. We have a duty to protect what we have. I agree with the Town Attorney that it is 

an institutional use. If this was a private project we wouldn’t be pushing our noses into the 

interior of the project.  We should be making a greater effort to preserve the interiors. 

Mr. LaChance:  We will need to hear from the applicant what they want to do in regards to the heated concrete 

note on the elevations.  They could take up to -3 points of outdoor heated space, or remove 

the note on the elevations.  I also want to be sure the Commission is aware that if we do apply 

Priority Design Standard 20 to the interior, it would be setting a precedent that would apply 

to future projects and private single family projects, for example.  That precedent would not 

differentiate between Town Project or private use. 

Mr. Grosshuesch: On BHA Board, with regard to the heated sidewalks there is a provision in Policy 33R for 

heating high traffic areas. (Mr. Gerard: There is precedent for that when it’s safety for the 

public in a high traffic area.) In regard to reviewing interior modifications, the Planning 

Commission does not have the authority to review interiors, we have never held other 

applicants to this standard, and I’m very concerned about the precedent this sets. (Mr. Gerard: 

In making my comments, we are not in the business of reviewing interiors or denying a 

project based on that.  I was hoping the input from SHPO would help us make 

recommendations, and do not intend to set precedent.) 

Ms. Leidal:  Can we continue the project to get more information? (Mr. LaChance: The Commission can 

make that motion if they so choose.) (Ms. Puester: I have concerns with setting precedent 

with reviewing the interiors, applying Priority Policy 20 to it. That was not the intent when 

we wrote it.  Staff would recommend against the Commission going beyond our Code 

perview.  I understand you want the opinion, but if you apply interiors to this project, it will 

set a precedent that we would need to apply to future projects whether they are public or 

private. Staff is very concerned with this interior review direction.) 

Mr. Schroder: Nothing further to add. 

Mr. Moore: Nothing further to add. 

Mr. Schuman: To Mr. Grosshuesch’s point on Policy 33R, this is not a high traffic area. In regards to the 

interior does it matter that it is public or private?  I don’t have any desire to set precedent but 

it is public land so I think it’s valid info for Council to consider.  

Mr. Gerard: Mr. Edwards comment in regards to tax credits is non-applicable because no one is seeking 

a tax credit. Everyone is on the record with his or her previous comments, no need to 

continue. 

Mr. LaChance: I have one final comment on the heated walkway note. Considering we’ve already opened 

and closed the public comment period, I would suggest we proceed with a condition that the 

note on the plans regarding heated sidewalk be removed prior to issuance of a Building 

Permit. 

 

Mr. Schroder made a motion to recommend the Town Council approve the project along with a condition to 

remove the heated outdoor space note. Mr. Schuman seconded the motion. The motion received 3 votes for and 

2 against (Mr. Giller, Mr. Schuman and Mr. Moore no, Mr. Schroeder and Mr. Gerard yes, Ms. Leidal-no vote). 

Mr. Schroder withdrew his motion for the purpose of additional discussion, prior to the final Commissioner’s 

vote. 

 

Ms. Leidal:  Can we have more discussion? Town Projects do not need our approval it is only a 

recommendation. (Ms. Puester: You are looking at a potential precedent here. Although the 
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Council has the ability to waive code sections, if not, public and private properties precedent 

cases are the same for review purposes.)  

Mr. Schroder:  Nothing to add. 

Mr. Moore: Nothing to add. 

Mr. Giller: One option to look at design that is in keeping with the Secretary’s standards. 

Mr. Gerard: If a project has a passing point analysis it should be passed. We can’t fail it because we don’t 

like it. (Ms. Puester: Trying to figure out. Are some Commissioners believing that it fails 

Priority Design Standard 20, so that could be a reason for a denial? Are you thinking its 

because of the interior?) 

Mr. Schuman:  I think the passing point analysis is incorrect because plans show a heated sidewalk and it 

fails Priority Design Standard 20, which is why I’m voting no. 

Mr. Giller: If you demolish the character defining front door and 3 of the 5 windows, then that is quite a 

bit and might be reason to fail due to Priority Design Standard 20.  Was there a historic 

structure report on this house? (Mr. LaChance: There is a cultural resource survey on file 

from 10 years ago.) (Ms. O’Neil: Yes, we have an assessment for Eberlein.)  Those are 

helpful in projects like these.  

Mr. Grosshuesch: I’m wondering if we should continue this.  (Ms. Puester: I would like a continuance as well 

to get the Town Attorney’s interpretation.) 

Mr. Schroder:   I withdraw my motion. 

Ms. Puester:  Are the applicants okay with a continuance? (Ms. O’Neil: It is not ideal but it’s our best 

option.) 

 

Mr. Moore made a motion to continue the hearing until April 7th, seconded by Ms. Leidal.  The motion passed 

6-0. 

 

OTHER MATTERS: 

1.  Town Council Summary (Memo Only) 

 

ADJOURNMENT: 

The meeting was adjourned at 9:48 pm. 

 

 

   

  Steve Gerard, Chair 
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Memo                                         
To:  Town Council 

From:  Jeremy Lott, AICP, Planner II 

Date:  March 18, 2020 for meeting of March 24, 2020 

Subject: Second Reading: Saint John the Baptist Episcopal Church Development Agreement  

This item came before the Council as a First Reading on January 14, 2020. This item was originally 
scheduled for a Second Reading on January 28, 2020. At that time, the Applicant requested to continue 
the item. At the February 11, 2020 Second Reading, the Council continued the hearing at the request of 
Staff and Applicant after a discussion on points waivers and eligibility. At the February 25, 2020 meeting, 
Staff and the Applicant requested the item be continued until March 24, 2020 as the language of the 
Agreement was still being finalized.  

Feedback from Council meetings have been incorporated into the attached Development Agreement. An 
outline of all the key issues and how they have changed through the review process is included in the 
attached chart. 

This is a Second Reading. Staff is available to answer any questions. 
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Development Agreement Process for St. John’s Church 
Topic of 
Conversation 

Worksession First Reading Second Reading 

Background The worksession was held on September 10, 
2019. 

The first reading was 
held on January 14, 
2020. 

The second reading was tabled on January 28 and 
continued to February 11. No changes were 
proposed between the first reading on January 14 
and the second reading on January 28. Requests 
from the February 11 discussion (points waivers, 
etc.) are below as well as if they’ve been included 
in the final agreement. This item was once again 
continued on February 25 to March 24. 

Density Council okay with additional density. Historic 
church would be landmarked and basement 
beneath would be finished. A connection of 195 
sq. ft. would be required between the existing 
basement and the new landmarked basement. 
Council agreed to “gift” density to the church 
for the transfer. The total calculated density of 
the property would be 3,951, excluding the 
landmarked basement. The property is allowed 
up to 2,016 sq. ft.  

No change Waiver of negative points was requested as 
otherwise the project would be over-density and 
would incur many negative points. Since the 
property is already over the allowed density, the 
total points assessed for this project would be 
negative 100 for being 1,935 sq. ft. over density.  
This waiver is included in the final agreement.  

Mass No new mass was proposed at this worksession. No change The allowed Mass on this property is 2,016 and 
the existing is 2,598, which would total negative 
100 points. A waiver of negative points was 
requested and is included in the final agreement.  
Additional mass was also requested for a 
dumpster enclosure (see below). 

Stairwell  At the initial worksession, a stairwell was 
proposed in the front yard. 

Stairwell was 
proposed at the rear 
of the building. 

No change 
14



Parking Council okay with waiving parking 
requirements. 

No change No change 

Setbacks 
(Placement of 
Structures) 

A waiver of this policy was discussed if the 
stairwell was placed on the south side of the 
building. 

 A small addition was shown on the northeast 
corner of the non-historic addition. The addition 
has been modified with this final plan to be within 
relative setbacks resulting in no negative points. 
No change to final agreement. 

Landscaping   A waiver of potential negative two points was 
requested in case the applicant is unable to meet 
screening requirements as some tree removal will 
be required. Not included in final agreement. Staff 
believes this application can meet screening 
requirements as the applicant will preserve as 
many trees as possible and plant additional as 
needed. 

Public Benefits 
Historic 
Preservation 

Proposed for public benefit No change Eligibility for positive points was requested for 
Preservation of the historic church. Not included 
in final agreement as is it part of the public 
benefit. 

Sidewalk on 
south side 

Proposed for public benefit No change Eligibility for positive points was requested. Not 
included in final agreement as is it part of the 
public benefit. 

Social Services Proposed for public benefit No change 
 

Eligibility for positive points under Policy 24R was 
requested for providing rooms for social services 
(meeting rooms, community dinners). Not 
included in final agreement as is it part of the 
public benefit. 

Stairwell along 
Lincoln Avenue 

Proposed to be removed from the right-of-way 
as a public benefit. 

No change No change 
15



Other Items 
Construction 
Staging 

 Construction staging 
at the Community 
Center was 
requested and 
initially placed within 
the Development 
Agreement language. 
The language was 
removed at this 
meeting. 

No change 

First Right of 
Offer 

  Language for a first right of offer for the Town is 
included in the Agreement and will be finalized at 
a future date. 

Dumpster 
Enclosure 

  A request for additional Mass was requested for a 
dumpster enclosure, which the Council was not 
supportive of. A statement has been added within 
the Agreement that the Town will work with the 
Church to utilize the existing dumpster enclosure 
at the Community Center. 
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FOR WORKSESSION/SECOND READING – MARCH 24 1 

 2 

NO CHANGE TO ORDINANCE FROM FIRST READING 3 
 4 

Additions To The Development Agreement As Approved on First Reading Are 5 
Indicated By Bold + Double Underline; Deletions By Strikeout 6 

 7 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 2 8 

 9 
Series 2020 10 

 11 
AN ORDINANCE APPROVING A DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT WITH 12 

SAINT JOHN THE BAPTIST EPISCOPAL CHURCH OF BRECKENRIDGE, A COLORADO 13 
NONPROFIT CORPORATION 14 

 (100 South French Street) 15 
 16 
BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, 17 
COLORADO: 18 
 19 
 Section 1.  Findings.  The Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge finds and 20 
determines as follows: 21 
 22 

A. Saint John the Baptist Episcopal Church of Breckenridge, a Colorado nonprofit 23 
corporation (“Church”), owns the following described real property in the Town of 24 
Breckenridge, Summit County, Colorado: 25 
 26 

Lots 1 and 2, Block 4, Abbett Addition to the Town of Breckenridge 27 
 28 
         (“Property”). 29 
 30 

B. There is located on the Property a church that was originally constructed in 1881 31 
(“Historic Church”), together with an addition to the Historic Church that was constructed in 32 
1986 (“1986 Addition”). Both the Historic Church and the 1986 have basements, but the 33 
Historic Church and the 1986 Addition are only connected above ground. 34 

 35 
C. Church proposes to restore and rehabilitate the Historic Church, remodel the 1986 36 

Addition, add a new foundations to both the Historic Church and the 1986 Addition, connect the 37 
Historic Church and the 1986 Addition below ground by an addition not to exceed 300 square 38 
feet size, and establish an exterior below grade entrance to the Historic Church including a 39 
staircase and the 1986 Addition on the southerly side of the Property (the “Project’). The Project 40 
is more fully described in the Application (as hereafter defined). 41 

 42 
D. A development agreement is necessary in order to accommodate the Project proposed 43 

by Church. 44 
 45 
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E. Pursuant to Chapter 9 of Title 9 the Breckenridge Town Code the Town Council has 1 
the authority to enter into a development agreement.   2 
 3 

F. The Town Council has received a completed application and all required submittals 4 
for a development agreement (“Application”); had a preliminary discussion of the Application 5 
and a proposed development agreement with the Church; and determined that it should 6 
commence proceedings for the approval of the proposed development agreement with the 7 
Church without referring the proposed development agreement to the Planning Commission for 8 
its review and recommendation.  9 

 10 
G. A proposed development agreement between the Town and the Church has been 11 

prepared, a copy of which is marked Exhibit “A”, attached hereto and incorporated herein by 12 
reference (“Development Agreement”). 13 

 14 
H. The Town Council has reviewed the proposed Development Agreement. 15 
 16 
I. The approval of the proposed Development Agreement is warranted in light of all 17 

relevant circumstances.  18 
 19 
J. The procedures to be used to review and approve a development agreement are 20 

provided in Chapter 9 of Title 9 of the Breckenridge Town Code. The requirements of such 21 
Chapter have substantially been met or waived in connection with the approval of the proposed 22 
Development Agreement and the adoption of this ordinance. 23 

 24 
 Section 2.  Approval of Development Agreement. The Development Agreement between 25 
the Town and Saint John the Baptist Episcopal Church of Breckenridge, a Colorado nonprofit 26 
corporation (Exhibit “A” hereto), is approved, and the Town Manager is authorized, 27 
empowered, and directed to execute such agreement for and on behalf of the Town of 28 
Breckenridge. 29 
 30 
 Section 3.  Notice of Approval. The Development Agreement shall contain a notice in the 31 
form provided in Section 9-9-13 of the Breckenridge Town Code. In addition, a notice in 32 
compliance with the requirements of Section 9-9-13 of the Breckenridge Town Code shall be 33 
published by the Town Clerk one time in a newspaper of general circulation in the Town within 34 
fourteen days after the adoption of this ordinance. Such notice shall satisfy the requirement of 35 
Section 24-68-103, C.R.S.  36 
 37 
 Section 4.  Police Power Finding. The Town Council finds, determines, and declares that 38 
this ordinance is necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the 39 
prosperity, and improve the order, comfort and convenience of the Town of Breckenridge and 40 
the inhabitants thereof. 41 
 42 
 Section 5.  Authority. The Town Council finds, determines, and declares that it has the 43 
power to adopt this ordinance pursuant to the authority granted to home rule municipalities by 44 
Article XX of the Colorado Constitution and the powers contained in the Breckenridge Town 45 
Charter. 46 

18



 1 
 Section 6.  Effective Date. This ordinance shall be published and become effective as 2 
provided by Section 5.9 of the Breckenridge Town Charter. 3 
 4 
 INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, APPROVED AND ORDERED 5 
PUBLISHED IN FULL this ____ day of ________, 2020.  A Public Hearing shall be held at the 6 
regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge, Colorado on the ___ day of 7 
____, 2020, at 7:00 P.M., or as soon thereafter as possible in the Municipal Building of the 8 
Town. 9 
 10 
      TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE 11 
 12 
 13 
      By:________________________________ 14 
            Eric S. Mamula, Mayor  15 
 16 
ATTEST: 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 
_________________________________ 21 
Helen Cospolich, CMC,  22 
Town Clerk 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 
 49 
 50 
 51 
 52 
 53 
 54 
 55 
 56 
 57 
1800-518\Development Agreement Ordinance (03-16-20)(Second Reading) 58 
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DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 
 

Page 1 
 

 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
 5 

 6 
Additions To The Development Agreement As Approved on First Reading Are 7 

Indicated By Bold + Dbl Underline; Deletions By Strikeout 8 
 9 

DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT 10 
 11 

This Development Agreement (“Agreement”) is made as of the ____ day of 12 
_______________, 2020 (“Effective Date”) between the TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, a 13 
Colorado municipal corporation (“Town”) and SAINT JOHN THE BAPTIST EPISCOPAL 14 
CHURCH OF BRECKENRIDGE, a Colorado nonprofit corporation (“Church”). Town and 15 
Church are sometimes collectively referred to in this Agreement as the “Parties,” and 16 
individually by name or as a “Party.” 17 
 18 
 Recitals 19 
 20 

A. Church owns the following described real property in the Town of Breckenridge, 21 
Summit County, Colorado: 22 
 23 

Lots 1 and 2, Block 4, Abbett Addition to the Town of Breckenridge 24 
 25 
         (“Property”). 26 
 27 

B. There is located on the Property a church that was originally constructed in 1881 28 
(“Historic Church”), together with an addition to the Historic Church that was constructed in 29 
1986 (“1986 Addition”). Both the Historic Church and the 1986 have basements, but the 30 
Historic Church and the 1986 Addition are only connected above ground. 31 

 32 
C. Church proposes to restore and rehabilitate the Historic Church, remodel the 1986 33 

Addition, add a new foundations to both the Historic Church and the 1986 Addition, and connect 34 
the Historic Church and the 1986 Addition below ground by an addition not to exceed 300 35 
square feet size (the “Project’). The Project is more fully described in the Application (as 36 
hereafter defined). 37 

 38 
D. A development agreement is necessary in order to accommodate the project proposed 39 

by Church. 40 
 41 

APPROVAL OF THIS DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT CONSTITUTES A VESTED 
PROPERTY RIGHT PURSUANT TO ARTICLE 68 OF TITLE 24, COLORADO REVISED 

STATUTES, AS AMENDED 
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E. Pursuant to Chapter 9 of Title 9 the Breckenridge Town Code the Town Council has 1 
the authority to enter into a development agreement.   2 
 3 

F. The commitments proposed by the Church in connection with this Agreement are set 4 
forth hereafter, and are found and determined by the Town Council to be adequate.  5 

 6 
G. The Town Council has received a completed application and all required submittals 7 

for a development agreement (“Application”); had a preliminary discussion of the Application 8 
and this Agreement; determined that it should commence proceedings for the approval of this 9 
Agreement; and, in accordance with the procedures set forth in Section 9-9-10(C) of the 10 
Breckenridge Town Code, has approved this Agreement by non-emergency ordinance.  11 

 12 
 Agreement 13 
 14 

1. Subject to the provisions of this Agreement, the Town’s Planning Commission1 is 15 
hereby authorized to review and approve the Application, subject to compliance with all other 16 
applicable development policies of the Town.  17 
 18 

2. So long as the Application is not materially amended prior to the Planning 19 
Commission’s final decision, the Application shall not be found to fail the following absolute 20 
policies of the Town’s Development Code2: (i) Section 9-1-19-3A, “Policy 3 (Absolute) 21 
Compliance With Density/Intensity Guidelines;” (ii) Section 9-1-19-4A, “Policy 4 (Absolute) 22 
Mass;” and (iii) Section 9-1-19-5A, “Policy 9 (Absolute) Placement of Structures;” and (iv) 23 
Section 9-1-19-18R, “Policy 18 (Absolute) Parking.” All other relevant absolute and relative 24 
development policies of the Development Code shall be applied to the Application in accordance 25 
with the Planning Commission’s normal process for evaluating an application for a development 26 
permit. 27 
 28 

3. So long as the Application is not materially amended prior to the Planning 29 
Commission’s final decision, no negative points shall be assessed against the Application 30 
under the following relative policies of the Town’s Development Code: (i) Section 9-1-193R, 31 
“Policy 3 (Relative) Compliance With Density/Intensity Guidelines;” and (ii) Section 9-1-32 
19-4R, “Policy 4 (Relative) Mass.  All other relevant relative development policies of the 33 
Development Code shall be applied to the Application in accordance with the Planning 34 
Commission’s normal process for evaluating an application for a development permit. 35 
 36 

4. 3. The Town will provide up to a maximum of 300 square feet of density for the 37 
Project at no cost to the Church. Provided, however, if it is ever determined by a court that the 38 

                                                 
1 The term “Planning Commission” as used in this Agreement includes the Town Council of the Town of 
Breckenridge, if the decision of the Planning Commission on the Application is “called up” by the Town Council 
pursuant to Section 9-1-18-5 of the Development Code. In the event of a call up, the Town Council shall make the 
final decision on the Application. 
2 Chapter 1 of Title 9 of the Breckenridge Town Code. 
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Town may not legally provide such density for any reason the Church the Town will not provide 1 
such density, and the Church will purchase the required density and transfer the purchased 2 
density to the Property. The purchase price for the required density will not exceed the 3 
amount in effect as of the date of this Agreement. 4 
 5 

5. During the period of the construction of the improvements described above, the 6 
Church may use a portion of the Town’s Community Center parking lot, and a portion of the 7 
Lincoln Street right-of-way (as depicted on the attached Exhibit “A”, which is incorporated into 8 
this Agreement by reference) for construction staging. Within five days following the issuance of 9 
a certificate of occupancy for the improvements Church shall clean up and remove all 10 
construction debris from the portions of the Town’s Community Center parking lot and the 11 
Lincoln Street right-of-way used by its contractors in connection with the construction of the  12 
improvements 13 
 14 

5. In connection with an application for a development permit to develop the 15 
Property in accordance with this Agreement, the application shall not receive an award of 16 
positive points under the Development Code for: (i)  any commitment offered to the Town 17 
by the Applicant pursuant to this Agreement, or (ii) any other obligation or requirement of 18 
the applicant under this Agreement. 19 
 20 

6. 4. As the commitments encouraged to be made in connection with an application for a 21 
development agreement pursuant to Section 9-9-4 of the Breckenridge Town Code, the Church 22 
shall do the following: (i) agree to have the Town designate the Historic Church (which includes 23 
the additional basement density allowed in connection with landmarking the building) as a 24 
historic landmark under the Town’s Historic Preservation Ordinance3; (ii) dedicate to the Town, 25 
in a form and substance acceptable to the Town Attorney, a new public pedestrian easement four 26 
feet in width running along the southerly property line of the Property; and (iii) remove the 27 
stairwell on the Property that currently encroaches into the Town’s Lincoln Avenue right-of-28 
way. These actions shall be taken as and when directed by the Town..; (iv) execute a restrictive 29 
covenant, in a form acceptable to the Town Attorney, restricting approximately 2,354 feet 30 
of space in the Church to use for social services4 in perpetuity, in accordance with Church 31 
policies then in force; and (v) grant to the Town a right of first offer to purchase the 32 
Property in the event the use of the Property as a church is ever discontinued. The Right of 33 
First Offer shall be set forth in a separate agreement to be recorded prior to the issuance of 34 
a building permit for the improvements to be constructed to the Property pursuant to this 35 
Agreement in a form acceptable to the Town attorney and the Church.  36 
 37 

                                                 
3Chapter 11 of Title 9 of the Breckenridge Town Code. 
4 “Social Services” means may include, but is not limited to, mental health programs, substance abuse 
programs, youth programs, and community meals. 
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7. Town will work with Church with respect to the Church’s use of the Town’s 1 
trash dumpster enclosure located on the adjacent Lots 1-9, Block 2, Yingling and Mickles 2 
Subdivision (Town’s Breckenridge Grand Vacation Community Center). 3 
 4 

8. 5. The term of this Agreement shall commence on the Effective Date and shall end, 5 
subject to earlier termination in the event of a breach of this Agreement, five (5) years from the 6 
Effective Date unless prior to such date the Application has finally been approved by the Town, 7 
and the development permit for the work on the Property has been executed and signed by 8 
Church. 9 
 10 

9. 6. Except as provided in Section 24-68-105, C.R.S. and except as specifically 11 
provided for herein, the execution of this Agreement shall not preclude the current or future 12 
application of municipal, state or federal ordinances, laws, rules or regulations to the Property 13 
(collectively, “laws”), including, but not limited to, building, fire, plumbing, engineering, 14 
electrical, and mechanical codes, and the Town’s Development Code, Subdivision Standards45, 15 
and other land use laws, as the same may be in effect from time to time throughout the term of 16 
this Agreement.  Except to the extent the Town otherwise specifically agrees, any development 17 
of the Property shall be done in compliance with the then-current laws of the Town. 18 
 19 

10. 7. Nothing in this Agreement shall preclude or otherwise limit the lawful authority of 20 
the Town to adopt or amend any Town law, including, but not limited to the Town’s: (i) 21 
Development Code, (ii)  Comprehensive Plan, (iii) Land Use Guidelines, and (iv) Subdivision 22 
Standards. 23 
 24 

11. 8. Prior to any action against Town for breach of this Agreement, Church shall give 25 
the Town a sixty (60) day written notice of any claim of a breach or default by the Town, and the 26 
Town shall have the opportunity to cure such alleged default within such time period. 27 
 28 

12. 9. Town shall not be responsible for, and Church shall have any remedy against the 29 
Town, if the Project is prevented or delayed for reasons beyond the control of the Town. 30 
 31 

13. 10. Church not shall commence work on its Project until it obtains such other and 32 
further Town permits and approvals as may be required from time to time by applicable Town 33 
ordinances.  34 
 35 

14. 11. No official or employee of the Town shall be personally responsible for any 36 
actual or alleged breach of this Agreement by the Town. 37 
 38 

15. 12. Church agrees to indemnify and hold the Town, its officers, employees, insurers, 39 
and self-insurance pool, harmless from and against all liability, claims, and demands, on account 40 
of injury, loss, or damage, including without limitation claims arising from bodily injury, 41 
personal injury, sickness, disease, death, property loss or damage, or any other loss of any kind 42 

                                                 
45Chapter 2 of Title 9 of the Breckenridge Town Code. 
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whatsoever, which arise out of or are in any manner connected with this Agreement, if such 1 
injury, loss, or damage is caused in whole or in part by, or is claimed to be caused in whole or in 2 
part by, the negligence or intentional act or omission of Church; any subcontractor of Church, or 3 
any officer, employee, representative, or agent of Church or of any subcontractor of Church, or 4 
which arise out of any worker’s compensation claim of any employee of Church, or of any 5 
employee of any subcontractor of Church; except to the extent such liability, claim or demand 6 
arises through the negligence or intentional act or omission of Town, its officers, employees, or 7 
agents. Church agrees to investigate, handle, respond to, and to provide defense for and defend 8 
against, any such liability, claims, or demands at the sole expense of Church. Church also agrees 9 
to bear all other costs and expenses related thereto, including court costs and attorney’s fees. 10 
 11 

16. 13. If any provision of this Agreement shall be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, it 12 
shall not affect or impair the validity, legality or enforceability of the remaining provisions of the 13 
Agreement. 14 
 15 

17. 14. This Agreement constitutes a vested property right pursuant to Article 68 of Title 16 
24, Colorado Revised Statutes, as amended. 17 
 18 

18. 15. Section 1115 of this Agreement shall survive the expiration or termination of this 19 
Agreement and shall be fully enforceable thereafter, subject to any applicable statute of 20 
limitation.  21 

 22 
19. 16. No waiver of any provision of this Agreement shall be deemed or constitute a 23 

waiver of any other provision, nor shall it be deemed to constitute a continuing waiver, unless 24 
expressly provided for by a written amendment to this Agreement signed by the Parties; nor shall 25 
the waiver of any default under this Agreement be deemed a waiver of any subsequent default or 26 
defaults of the same type. 27 
 28 

20. 17. This Agreement shall be recorded in the office of the Clerk and Recorder of 29 
Summit County, Colorado. 30 

  31 
21. 18. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall constitute a waiver of the Town’s 32 

sovereign immunity under any applicable state or federal law. 33 
 34 

22. 19. Personal jurisdiction and venue for any civil action commenced by any Party to 35 
this Agreement shall be deemed to be proper only if such action is commenced in District Court 36 
of Summit County, Colorado. Church each expressly waive any right to bring such action in or to 37 
remove such action to any other court, whether state or federal. BOTH PARTIES WAIVE ANY 38 
RIGHT TO A JURY TRIAL IN CONNECTION WITH ANY ACTION TO ENFORCE, INTERPRET OR 39 
CONSTRUE THIS AGREEMENT. 40 
 41 
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23. 20. Any notice required or permitted hereunder shall be in writing and shall be 1 
sufficient if personally delivered or mailed by certified mail, return receipt requested, addressed 2 
as follows: 3 

 4 
If to the Town: Rick G. Holman, Town Manager 5 

Town of Breckenridge 6 
P.O. Box 168 7 
Breckenridge, CO 80424 8 

 9 
With a copy (which  10 
shall not constitute      11 
notice to the Town) to: Timothy H. Berry, Esq. 12 

Town Attorney 13 
P.O. Box 2 14 
Leadville, CO 80461 15 

 16 
If to Church: Reverend Charles F. Brumbaugh  17 

Saint John the Baptist Episcopal Church 18 
P.O. Box 2166 19 

      Breckenridge, CO 80424 20 
       21 
Notices mailed in accordance with the provisions of this Section 21 shall be deemed to have been 22 
given upon delivery. Notices personally delivered shall be deemed to have been given upon 23 
delivery. Nothing herein shall prohibit the giving of notice in the manner provided for in the 24 
Colorado Rules of Civil Procedure for service of civil process. 25 
 26 

24. 21. This Agreement shall be interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of  27 
Colorado without regard to principles of conflicts of laws. 28 
 29 

25. 22. This Agreement constitutes the entire agreement and understanding between the 30 
Parties relating to the subject matter of this Agreement and supersedes any prior agreement or 31 
understanding relating to such subject matter. 32 

 33 
TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE 34 

 35 
 36 
 37 
 By: ________________________________ 38 
                                          Rick G. Holman, Town Manager 39 
 40 
  41 
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ATTEST: 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
__________________________________ 5 
Helen Cospolich, CMC, Town    6 
Clerk 7 
 8 
STATE OF COLORADO ) 9 

) ss. 10 
COUNTY OF SUMMIT ) 11 
 12 

The foregoing was acknowledged before me this _____ day of __________________, 13 
2020 by Rick G. Holman, as Town Manager, and Helen Cospolich, CMC, as Town Clerk, of the 14 
Town of Breckenridge, a Colorado municipal corporation. 15 
 16 

Witness my hand and official seal. 17 
 18 
My commission expires:_____________ 19 

 20 
 21 
____________________________________  22 
Notary Public 23 
 24 
SAINT JOHN THE BAPTIST EPISCOPAL 25 

 CHURCH OF BRECKENRIDGE, a 26 
 Colorado nonprofit corporation 27 

 28 
 29 
By: ________________________________  30 
 31 
Name: ______________________________ 32 
 33 
Title: _______________________________ 34 
        35 

  36 
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STATE OF COLORADO ) 1 
) ss. 2 

COUNTY OF SUMMIT ) 3 
 4 

The foregoing was acknowledged before me this _____ day of ___________________, 5 
2020, by ________________________________, as ____________________________ of Saint 6 
John The Baptist Episcopal Church of Breckenridge, a Colorado nonprofit corporation. 7 

 8 
Witness my hand and official seal. 9 
 10 
My commission expires:_____________ 11 
 12 
 13 

____________________________________  14 
Notary Public 15 
 16 

 17 
 18 
 19 
 20 
 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 
 49 
 50 
 51 
 52 
 53 
 54 
 55 
 56 
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1 

Memo                                         

To:   Town Council   

From:   Eli Johnston, Chief Building Official  

Date:   3/17/2020 

Subject:  Continuance of the Sustainable Energy Code  

On February 25th Council considered an Ordinance adopting the Sustainable Energy Building Code.  The 
Ordinance was continued from the March 10th meeting due to the Summit County Builders Association 
having several concerns. The Ordinance was then scheduled for second reading on March 24th. 
Unfortunately, due to the on-going COVID-19 issues, staff believes that it would be most prudent to 
continue this second reading to a future date. 

Staff recommends that Council authorize a continuance of the second reading to April 28th     
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Memo 
To: 

From: 

Date: 

Subject: 

Town Council  

Laurie Best-Community Development Department 

3/17/2020 (for March 24, 2020 meeting) 

CONTINUANCE-AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1 OF TITLE 
9 OF THE BRECKENRIDGE TOWN CODE, KNOWN AS THE “TOWN 
OF BRECKENRIDGE DEVELOPMENT CODE,” BY AMENDING 
POLICY 24 (ABSOLUTE) AND POLICY 24 (RELATIVE) 
CONCERNING HOUSING 

On March 10, 2020 the Council considered an Ordinance amending Policy 24 (Housing). The Ordinance 
was scheduled for second reading/public hearing on March 28th. Unfortunately, due to the on-going 
COVID-19 issues, staff believes that it would be most prudent to continue this second reading to a future 
date.  

Staff recommends that Council authorize a continuance of the second reading to April 28, 2020. 
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Memo                                         
To:  Town Council  

From:  Julia Puester, AICP, Assistant Community Development Director 

Date:  3/17/2020 (for March 28, 2020 meeting) 

Subject: Second Reading- Policy 24A/R Social Community Regarding Amenities and Policy 
25R Transit Positive Point Modifications 

Background 

Staff reviewed the proposed changes at first reading with Council on March 10th. This policy change was 
developed in reaction to concerns from the Town Council regarding the amount of positive points 
available in the Development Code for amenity space in Policy 24/R. Under the current business model 
for larger sized accommodations like hotels and condo/hotels, developers are likely to provide large 
amounts of amenity spaces regardless of positive points and therefore, the public benefit is negligible. 
Meeting rooms, per the existing policy, would continue to receive positive points under the policy which 
the Town has a shortage of.  Applications with positive points for meeting rooms would be required to 
record a covenant that runs with the property to ensure that designated meeting space remains in 
perpetuity which has been added to the second reading. 

Staff has also proposed changes to Policy 25/R Transit, which Council directed staff to modify at second 
reading to continue to award positive two (+2) points for lodging shuttles and add that electric shuttle 
systems would receive positive four (+4) points which has been included with this reading.  

Staff Recommendation 

Staff recommends that the Town Council approve the second reading to amend Policy 24/A Social 
Community regarding Amenities and Policy 24/R Transit as attached. 

Staff will be available at the meeting to answer any questions that the Town Council may have. 
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FOR WORKSESSION/SECOND READING – MARCH 24 1 

 2 
Additions To The Ordinance As Approved on First Reading Are 3 
Indicated By Bold + Double Underline; Deletions By Strikeout 4 

 5 
COUNCIL BILL NO. 11 6 

 7 
Series 2020 8 

 9 
AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 1 OF TITLE 9 OF THE BRECKENRIDGE 10 

TOWN CODE, KNOWN AS THE “TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE DEVELOPMENT CODE,” 11 
BY AMENDING POLICY 24 (RELATIVE) CONCERNING THE SOCIAL COMMUNITY 12 

AND POLICY 25 CONCERNING TRANSIT  13 
 14 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, 15 
COLORADO: 16 
 17 

Section 1.  Subsection D of Section 9-1-19-24R, “Policy 24 (Relative) Social 18 
Community,” of the Breckenridge Town Code is amended to read as follows: 19 

 20 

3 x 
(0/+2)     

D.    Meeting And Conference Rooms: The provision of meeting and 
conference facilities over and above that required in section 9-1-19-24A, 
"Policy 24 (Absolute) The Social Community", subsection A, of this 
chapter is strongly encouraged. (These facilities, when provided over and 
above that required in section 9-1-19-24A, "Policy 24 (Absolute) The 
Social Community", subsection A, of this chapter, shall not be assessed 
against the density and mass of a project when the meeting spaces are 
legally guaranteed to remain as meeting and conference facilities by a 
restrictive covenant complying with the requirements of Section 9-1-
26, and they do not equal more than 200 percent of the area required under 
section 9-1-19-24A, "Policy 24 (Absolute) The Social Community", 
subsection A, of this chapter.)    

 21 
Section 2. Section 9-1-19-25R, “Policy 25 (Relative) Transit,” of the Breckenridge 22 

Town Code is amended to read as follows: 23 
 24 

2 x (-/+4)        Nonauto Transit System: The inclusion of or the contribution to a 
permanent nonauto transit system, designed to facilitate the movement of 
persons to and from Breckenridge or within the Town, is strongly 
encouraged. Nonauto transit system elements include buses and bus stops, 
both public and private, air service, trains, lifts, and lift access that have 
the primary purpose of providing access from high density residential 
areas or major parking lots of the Town to the mountain, etc. Any 
development which interferes with the community's ability to provide 
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nonauto oriented transportation elements is discouraged. Positive points 
shall be awarded under this policy only for the inclusion of or the 
contribution to nonauto transit system elements which are located on the 
applicant's property. Higher pPoint assignments will be considered only 
for transit systems available to the general public.  
+2 points shall be assigned for a lodging shuttle system.  
+4 points shall be assigned for an all electric shuttle system.  
+6-or +8 points shall be assigned for Higher point assignments will be 
given to large scale solutions.  

 1 
Section 3. The Town Council hereby finds, determines and declares that this ordinance 2 

is necessary and proper to provide for the safety, preserve the health, promote the prosperity, 3 
and improve the order, comfort and convenience of the Town of Breckenridge and the 4 
inhabitants thereof. 5 

 6 
Section 4. The Town Council hereby finds, determines and declares that it has the power 7 

to adopt this ordinance pursuant to: (i) the Local Government Land Use Control Enabling Act, 8 
Article 20 of Title 29, C.R.S.; (ii) Part 3 of Article 23 of Title 31, C.R.S. (concerning municipal 9 
zoning powers); (iii) Section 31-15-103, C.R.S. (concerning municipal police powers); (iv) 10 
Section 31-15-401, C.R.S.(concerning municipal police powers); (v) the authority granted to 11 
home rule municipalities by Article XX of the Colorado Constitution; and (vi) the powers 12 
contained in the Breckenridge Town Charter. 13 

 14 
Section 5. This ordinance shall be published and become effective as provided by Section 15 

5.9 of the Breckenridge Town Charter. 16 
 17 

 INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, APPROVED AND ORDERED 18 
PUBLISHED IN FULL this ____ day of _____, 2020.  A Public Hearing shall be held at the 19 
regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge, Colorado on the ___ day of 20 
____, 2020, at 7:00 P.M., or as soon thereafter as possible in the Municipal Building of the 21 
Town. 22 
 23 

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, a Colorado 24 
     municipal corporation 25 
 26 
 27 
          By: ______________________________ 28 
            Eric S. Mamula, Mayor 29 
 30 
ATTEST: 31 
 32 
 33 
_________________________ 34 
Helen Cospolich, CMC, 35 
Town Clerk 36 
500-419\Policies 24R and 25R Ordinance_2 (03-17-20)(First Reading) 37 
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Memo                                         

To:  Mayor and Town Council Members 

From:  Tim Berry, Town Attorney 

Date:  3/16/20 

Subject:  Council Bill No. 12 (Amendment to Accommodation Tax Ordinance) 

The second reading of the ordinance amending the Town’s Accommodation Tax Ordinance is 
scheduled for your meeting on March 24th.  There are no changes proposed to ordinance from first 
reading. 

 
I will be happy to discuss this matter with you on Tuesday. 
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FOR WORKSESSION/SECOND READING – MARCH 10 1 

 2 

NO CHANGE FROM FIRST READING 3 

 4 

COUNCIL BILL NO. 12 5 

 6 

Series 2020 7 

 8 

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING CHAPTER 4 OF TITLE 3 OF THE BRECKENRIDGE 9 

TOWN CODE KNOWN AS THE “BRECKENRIDGE PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION TAX” 10 

ORDINANCE 11 

 12 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, 13 

COLORADO: 14 

 15 

Section 1.  The Town Council finds, determines, and declares as follows: 16 

 A. The Town of Breckenridge is a home rule municipal corporation organized existing 17 

under Article XX of the Colorado Constitution. 18 

 19 

 B.  The electors of the Town adopted the Breckenridge Town Charter on April 1, 1980. 20 

  21 

 C. Section 12.1 of the Breckenridge Town Charter provides that the Town Council of the 22 

Town may, by ordinance, levy and collect excise taxes for municipal purposes. 23 

 24 

 D. The Town Council has heretofore enacted various municipal excise taxes, each of 25 

which is currently codified in Title 3 of the Breckenridge Town Code. 26 

 27 

 E. In 1992 the electors of the state approved Article X, §20 of the Colorado Constitution, 28 

commonly known as the “TABOR Amendment.”  29 

 30 

 F. The Town is a “district” as defined in TABOR. 31 

 32 

 G. Section 7(b) of TABOR establishes a formula for the calculation of a local district’s 33 

(such as the Town’s) allowed annual fiscal year spending. 34 

 35 

 H. Section 7(d) of TABOR provides that local electors may approve a “voter-approved 36 

revenue change” to the local district’s allowed annual fiscal year spending. 37 

 38 

 I. By Ordinance No. 28, Series 1995, the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge 39 

referred to the electors of the Town the following ballot question: 40 

 41 

SHALL THE TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE BE AUTHORIZED, 42 

COMMENCING IN 1994 AND CONTINUING ANNUALLY THEREAFTER, 43 

TO COLLECT AND RETAIN WHATEVER AMOUNTS ARE RAISED 44 

ANNUALLY FROM ALL SOURCES, WITHOUT LIMITATION, AND THE 45 
43
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AUTHORITY TO EXPEND SUCH REVENUES FOR THE PURPOSES OF 1 

PROVIDING FOR THE HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE OF THE 2 

PEOPLE OF THE TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, AS A VOTER-APPROVED 3 

REVENUE CHANGE AND EXCEPTION TO THE LIMITS WHICH WOULD 4 

OTHERWISE APPLY, PURSUANT TO ARTICLE X, SECTION 20 OF THE 5 

COLORADO CONSTITUTION (ALSO KNOWN AS “TABOR” AND 6 

‘AMENDMENT ONE’); PROVIDED THAT NO TOWN TAX RATE OR MILL 7 

LEVY SHALL BE INCREASED AND NO NEW TAX SHALL BE CREATED 8 

WITHOUT FURTHER VOTER APPROVAL? 9 

  10 

 J. At a special municipal election held on November 7, 1995 the electors of the Town 11 

approved the ballot question set forth in Section I, above. 12 

 13 

 K. In 2009 the Colorado Supreme Court issued its opinion in the case of Mesa County 14 

Bd. of Comm’rs v State, 203 P.3d 519 (Colo. 2009). In its opinion the Supreme Court held that 15 

when a municipality subject to TABOR has approved a broadly worded measure such as the 16 

Town did in 1995, the municipality may thereafter amend its tax ordinance(s) without a new 17 

election because, in the language of the Court’s opinion, “such a requirements would create 18 

unnecessary redundancy.” 19 

 20 

 L. Pursuant to the Colorado Supreme Court’s holding in the case mentioned in Section K, 21 

the adoption of this ordinance does not result in a “tax policy change” requiring approval of the 22 

Town’s electors under TABOR.  23 

 24 

 M. The adoption of the ordinance does not create a new tax or tax rate. 25 

 26 

Section 2.  Chapter 4 of Title 3 of the Breckenridge Town Code is amended to read as 27 

follows: 28 

CHAPTER 4 29 

 30 

BRECKENRIDGE PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION TAX 31 

 32 

SECTION: 33 

 34 

3-4-1:   TITLE 35 

3-4-2:   LEGISLATIVE INTENT 36 

3-4-3:   DEFINITIONS 37 

3-4-4:   IMPOSITION OF TAX 38 

3-4-5:   EXEMPTIONS 39 

3-4-6:   COLLECTION OF TAX 40 

3-4-7:   VENDOR RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENT OF TAX 41 

3-4-8:   DUTY TO KEEP BOOKS AND RECORDS 42 

3-4-9:   CONSOLIDATION OF RETURNS 43 

3-4-10:   TRUST STATUS OF TAX IN POSSESSION OF VENDOR 44 

3-4-11:   COLLECTION AND REFUND OF DISPUTED TAX 45 

3-4-12:   REFUND PROCEDURE 46 
44
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3-4-13:   EXAMINATION OF RETURNS; REFUNDS; CREDITS; AND 1 

 DEFICIENCIES 2 

3-4-14:  INTEREST ON LATE PAYMENTS; PENALTY 3 

3-4-15:  PENALTIES FOR DEFICIENCY CAUSED BY FRAUD 4 

3-14-16:   INVESTIGATION OF VENDOR’S BOOKS 5 

3-14-17:   AUDIT; ESTIMATED OF TAXES; PENALTY; INTEREST; 6 

 NOTICE; ASSESSMENT 7 

3-4-18:   REVIEW BY FINANCE DIRECTOR 8 

3-4-19:   REVIEW OF FINANCE DIRECTOR’S FINAL ORDER OR 9 

 DECISION 10 

3-4-20:   TAX LIEN 11 

3-4-21:   SALE UPON DISTRAINT 12 

3-4-22:   RELEASE OF LIEN 13 

3-4-23:   MANAGER MAY WAIVER PENALTY 14 

3-4-24:   LICENSE AND TAX IN ADDITION TO ALL OTHER TAXES 15 

3-4-25:   VIOLATIONS; EVASION OF COLLECTION OR PAYMENT OF 16 

 TAX 17 

 18 

3-4-1:  TITLE:  19 

 20 

This Chapter shall be known as and referred to as the REVISED 21 

BRECKENRIDGE PUBLIC ACCOMMODATION TAX. 22 

 23 

3-4-2:  LEGISLATIVE INTENT: 24 

 25 

A.  It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent of the Town Council that, for 26 

the purposes of this Chapter, every person who purchases in the Town any 27 

lodging is exercising a taxable privilege.  28 

 29 

B. It is hereby declared to be the legislative intent of the Town Council that, for 30 

the purposes of this Chapter, every vendor who shall make a sale of lodging to a 31 

purchaser in the Town shall collect the tax imposed by this Chapter to the total 32 

purchase price charged for such lodging furnished at any one (1) time by or to 33 

every customer or buyer, in the manner set forth in this Chapter. It is the 34 

legislative intent of the Town Council that the term “vendor” as used in this 35 

Chapter shall include, without limitation, online travel companies to the 36 

maximum extent permitted by law. 37 

 38 

3-4-3:  DEFINITIONS:   39 

 40 

In addition to the definitions in Chapter 1 of this Title, when used in this Chapter 41 

the following words shall have the following meanings unless the context requires 42 

otherwise: 43 

 44 
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(1) Gross taxable sales means the total amount received in money, credits, 1 

property or other consideration valued in money from sales and purchases of 2 

lodging that is subject to the tax imposed in this Chapter.  3 

 4 

(2) Lodging shall mean rooms or accommodations for overnight use furnished by 5 

any person or the representative of any person to any person who for 6 

consideration uses, possesses, occupies or has the right to use, possess or occupy 7 

any such room or accommodation in a hotel, condominium hotel, apartment hotel, 8 

condominium, lodging house, motel, motor hotel, guest house, guest ranch, resort, 9 

mobile home, mobile home park, auto court, inn, trailer court, trailer park or 10 

hotel, under any concession, permit, lease, contract, license to use or other similar 11 

arrangement.  12 

 13 

(3) Purchase or sale means the acquisition or furnishing for consideration by any 14 

person of lodging within the Town.  15 

 16 

(4) Purchaser means any person exercising the taxable privilege of purchasing 17 

lodging.  18 

 19 

(5) Tax means either the tax payable by the purchaser or the aggregate amount of 20 

taxes due from a vendor during the period for which the vendor is required to 21 

report collections under this Chapter.  22 

 23 

(6) Vendor means a person making sales of or furnishing lodging to a purchaser in 24 

the Town.  25 

 26 

 3-4-3:  IMPOSITION OF TAX: 27 

 28 

There is hereby levied and shall be collected and paid a tax by every person 29 

exercising the taxable privilege of purchasing lodging as in this Chapter defined 30 

an excise tax of three and four-tenths percent (3.4%) on the purchase price paid of 31 

charged for such lodging.   32 

 33 

3-4-4:  EXEMPTIONS:  34 

 35 

There shall be exempt from this Chapter the following:  36 

 37 

(1) All lodging as defined in this Chapter furnished to any person who resides 38 

continuously for a period of thirty (30) consecutive days or more in rooms or 39 

accommodations or has the right to so reside pursuant to any written concession, 40 

permit, contract, license to use or other written arrangement;  41 

(2) All sales to the United States government; to the State of Colorado, its 42 

departments or institutions, and the political subdivisions thereof, in their 43 

governmental capacities only; and all sales to the Town and any department 44 

thereof;  45 

(3) All sales to charitable organizations that are:  46 
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a. Billed directly to the charitable organization;  1 

b. Paid directly from funds of the charitable organization; and  2 

c. Used exclusively for the charitable organization’s organizational or operational 3 

purposes.  4 

 5 

3-4-5:  COLLECTION OF TAX: 6 

 7 

A.  Every vendor making sales to a purchaser in the Town, which are taxable 8 

under the provisions of this Chapter, at the time of making such sales is required 9 

to collect the tax imposed by Section 3-4-3 from the purchaser.  10 

 11 

B.  The tax to be collected as provided by Section A of this Section shall be stated 12 

and charged separately from the sale price and shown separately from the sale 13 

price on any record thereof at the time when the sale is made or at the time when 14 

evidence of the sale is made or at the time when evidence of the sale is issued or 15 

employed by the vendor; provided, that when added such tax shall constitute a 16 

part of such purchase price or charge and shall be a debt from the purchaser to the 17 

vendor until paid and shall be recoverable at law in the same manner as other 18 

debts. The tax shall be paid by the purchaser to the vendor, as trustee for and on 19 

account of the Town, and the vendor shall be liable for the collection thereof and 20 

on account of the Town.  21 

C.  Taxes paid on the amount of gross sales which are represented by accounts 22 

which are found to be worthless and are actually and properly charged off as bad 23 

debts for the purpose of the income tax imposed by the laws of the state may be 24 

credited upon a subsequent payment of the tax herein provided; but if any such 25 

accounts are thereafter collected by the taxpayer, a tax shall be paid upon the 26 

amount so collected.  27 

 28 

3-4-6:  VENDOR RESPONSIBLE FOR PAYMENT OF TAX: 29 

 30 

A. Amount. Every vendor shall add the tax imposed by Section 3-4-3 to the 31 

purchase price or charge for lodging, and the vendor shall be liable and 32 

responsible to the Town for the payment on a monthly basis of an amount 33 

equivalent to such tax on all gross taxable sales, and also liable and responsible to 34 

the Town for any collection in excess of that equivalent amount. Every vendor 35 

shall on its return round each calculation, as directed on such form as the Finance 36 

Director may require, to the nearest whole dollar and remit the rounded amount. 37 

In rounding under this section, any amount of forty-nine cents ($0.49) or less shall 38 

be rounded down, and any amount of fifty cents ($0.50) or higher shall be 39 

rounded up.  40 

 41 

B. Returns. Every vendor shall on or before the twentieth day of each month make 42 

a return to the Finance Director for the preceding calendar month and remit to the 43 

Finance Director simultaneously therewith the total amount due the Town as 44 

provided by subsection (a). Returns of the vendor, or the Vendor’s duly 45 

authorized agent, shall contain such information and be made in such a manner 46 

47
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and upon such forms as the Finance Director may prescribe, and the Finance 1 

Director may, by regulation duly adopted, extend the time up to one (1) year for 2 

making returns and paying the tax due.  3 

 4 

3-4-7:  DUTY TO KEEP BOOKS AND RECORDS 5 

 6 

It shall be the duty of every vendor hereunder to keep and preserve suitable 7 

records of all sales made by the vendor and such other books or accounts as may 8 

be necessary to determine the amount of the tax for the collection or payment of 9 

which such vendor is liable under this Chapter. It shall be the duty of every 10 

vendor to keep and preserve for a period of three (3) years following the due date 11 

of the return or the payment of the tax all such books, invoices and other records 12 

necessary to determine the tax and the same shall be open for examination by the 13 

Finance Director. Upon demand by the Finance Director the vendor shall make 14 

the books, invoices, accounts or other records it maintains available at the office 15 

of the Finance Director or some other place designated by the Finance Director 16 

for examination, inspection and audit by the Finance Director. The Finance 17 

Director, in the Finance Director’s discretion, may make, permit or cause to be 18 

made the examination, inspection or audit of books, invoices, accounts and other 19 

records so kept or maintained by the vendor. When the vendor shall have entered 20 

into a binding agreement with the Town to reimburse it for all costs and expenses 21 

incurred by the Town in order to have such examination, inspection or audit at a 22 

place other than the place designated by the Finance Director, then such 23 

examination, inspection or audit shall be made where such records are kept or 24 

maintained by the vendor or as otherwise designated in the agreement.  25 

 26 

3-4-8:  CONSOLIDATION OF RETURNS: 27 

 28 

A vendor doing business in two (2) or more places or locations, whether in or 29 

without the Town, and collecting taxes under this Chapter may file one (1) return 30 

covering all such places or locations, when accompanied by a supplemental report 31 

showing the gross and net taxable sales and taxes collected thereon for each such 32 

place or location.  33 

 34 

3-4-10:  TRUST STATUS OF TAX IN POSSESSION OF VENDOR: 35 

 36 

All sums of money paid by the purchaser to the vendor as taxes imposed by this 37 

Chapter shall be and remain public money, the property of the Town, in the hands 38 

of such vendor, and the vendor shall hold the same in trust for the sole use and 39 

benefit of the Town until paid to the Finance Director as herein provided, and for 40 

failure so to pay to the Finance Director, such vendor shall be punished for a 41 

violation hereof.  42 

 43 

3-4-11:  COLLECTION AND REFUND OF DISPUTED TAX: 44 

 45 
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Should a dispute arise between the purchaser and vendor as to whether or not the 1 

sale of lodging is exempt from taxation under this Chapter, nevertheless, the 2 

vendor shall collect and the purchaser shall pay such tax, and the vendor shall 3 

thereupon issue to the purchaser a receipt or certificate, on forms prescribed by 4 

the Finance Director, showing the names of the purchaser and vendor, the date, 5 

price, amount of tax paid, and a brief statement of the claim of exemption. The 6 

purchaser thereafter may apply to the Finance Director for a refund of such taxes, 7 

and it shall be the duty of the Finance Director to determine the question of 8 

exemption, subject to review by the courts.  9 

 10 

3-4-12:  REFUND PROCEDURE: 11 

 12 

A. Generally. A refund shall be made or credit allowed for the tax paid under 13 

dispute by any purchaser who has an exemption as provided in this Chapter. 14 

Interest shall be paid on refunds, but not credits, for overpayments. Interest shall 15 

accrue from the time the overpayment is made. The rate of interest shall be fixed, 16 

and shall be the average monthly rate earned by the Town on the general fund for 17 

the calendar year immediately preceding the year in which the refund is made. 18 

Such refund shall be made by the Finance Director after compliance with the 19 

conditions of this Chapter.  20 

 21 

B. Application. Applications for a refund must be made within sixty (60) days 22 

after the purchase of the lodging on which the exemption is claimed and must be 23 

supported by the affidavit of the vendor accompanied by the original paid invoice 24 

or sales receipt and a certificate issued by the vendor, and be made upon such 25 

forms as shall be prescribed and furnished by the Finance Director, which forms 26 

shall contain such information as the Finance Director shall prescribe.  27 

 28 

C. Decisions. Upon receipt of such application, the Finance Director shall 29 

examine the same with all due speed and shall give notice to the applicant by an 30 

order in writing of the decision thereon.  31 

 32 

D. Refunds not assignable. The right of any person to a refund under this Chapter 33 

shall not be assignable, and application for refund must be made by the same 34 

person who purchased the lodging and paid the tax thereon as shown in the 35 

invoice of the sale thereof.  36 

 37 

E. Penalty for violating refund provisions. Any applicant for refund under the 38 

provisions hereinabove, or any other person, who shall make any false statement 39 

in connection with an application for a refund of any tax shall be deemed guilty of 40 

a violation of this Chapter.  41 

 42 

F. Violations of refund provisions to be used as evidence of fraudulent intent. If 43 

any person be convicted under the provisions of subsection (f), such conviction 44 

shall be prima facie evidence that all refunds received by such person during the 45 

current year were obtained unlawfully, and the Finance Director is hereby 46 
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empowered and directed to bring appropriate action for recovery of such refund. 1 

A brief summary of the above mentioned penalties shall be printed on each form 2 

application for refund.  3 

 4 

G. Burden of proof. The burden of proof that sales of lodging on which tax 5 

refunds are claimed are exempt from taxation under this Chapter shall be on the 6 

one making such claim and such proof shall be by a preponderance of evidence.  7 

 8 

3-4-13:  EXAMINATION OF RETURNS; REFUNDS; CREDITS; AND 9 

DEFICIENCIES. 10 

 11 

As soon as practicable after the return is filed, the Finance Director shall examine 12 

it and:  13 

 14 

(1) If it then appears that the correct amount of tax to be remitted is greater or less 15 

than that shown in the return, the tax shall be recomputed;  16 

(2) If the amount paid exceeds that which is due, the excess shall be refunded with 17 

interest pursuant to [insert interest section number], or credited, against any 18 

subsequent remittance from the same person, provided, however, that a claim for 19 

refund or credit is made within three (3) years of the date the return is filed or, if 20 

the three-year period for assessment of tax has been extended as provide in this 21 

Title, then a claim for refund or credit may be made within such extended period;  22 

(3) If the amount paid is less than the amount due, the difference, together with 23 

interest thereon at the rate of one (1) percent per month from the time the return 24 

was due, shall be paid by the taxpayer within thirty (30) days after written notice 25 

and demand to the taxpayer from the Finance Director.  26 

 27 

3-4-14:  INTEREST ON LATE PAYMENTS; PENALTY. 28 

 29 

A. In any case in which a taxpayer fails to file a return or pay over the tax within 30 

the time required by this Chapter, but without the intent to defraud, there shall be 31 

added as a penalty fifteen (15) percent of the total amount of the deficiency, but 32 

not less than twenty-five dollars ($25.00), and interest in such cases shall be 33 

collected at the rate of one (1) percent each month, or fraction thereof, on the 34 

amount due on the deficiency from the time the return was due to the date the tax 35 

is paid, which interest and addition shall become due and payable within thirty 36 

(30) days after the written notice and demand by the Finance Director, and such 37 

interest shall be assessed, collected and paid in the same manner as the tax itself.  38 

B. Payments of part but less than all of a deficiency, including interest, or interest 39 

and penalty, shall be first applied to penalty, if any, secondly to accrued interest 40 

and, lastly, to the tax itself.  41 

 42 

3-4-15: PENALTIES FOR DEFICIENCY CAUSED BY FRAUD: 43 

 44 

If any part of the deficiency is due to fraud with the intent to evade the tax, then 45 

there shall be added fifty (50) percent of the total amount of the deficiency, and in 46 
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such case the whole amount of the tax unpaid, including the additions, shall 1 

become due and payable thirty (30) days after written notice and demand by the 2 

Finance Director, and an additional one (1) percent per month on such amounts 3 

shall be added from the date the return was due until paid.  4 

 5 

3-4-16:  INVESTIGATION OF VENDOR’S  BOOKS. 6 

 7 

For the purpose of ascertaining the correctness of a return or for the purpose of 8 

determining the amount of tax due from any person, the Finance Director may 9 

hold investigations and hearings concerning any matters covered by this Chapter 10 

and may examine any relevant books, papers, records or memoranda of any such 11 

person and may require the attendance of such person, or any officer or employee 12 

of such person, or of any person having knowledge of such sales, and may take 13 

testimony and require proof for their information. The Finance Director shall have 14 

power to administer oaths to such persons.  15 

 16 

3-4-17:  AUDIT; ESTIMATE OF TAXES, PENALTY, AND INTEREST; 17 

NOTICE; ASSESSMENT. 18 

 19 

A. The Finance Director is authorized to examine, inspect and audit the books, 20 

invoices, accounts and other records kept or maintained by the taxpayer for the 21 

collection of the taxes imposed by this Chapter. If the Finance Director 22 

determines that any taxpayer neglects or refuses to make a timely return in 23 

payment of the taxes or to pay or to correctly account for any taxes as required by 24 

this Chapter, the Finance Director shall make an estimate, based upon such 25 

information as may be available, with or without employing investigative powers 26 

vested in the Finance Director by this Chapter, of the amount of the taxes due for 27 

the period or periods for which the taxpayer is delinquent; and upon the basis of 28 

such estimated amount, compute and assess in addition thereto a penalty equal to 29 

fifteen (15) percent thereof, together with the interest on such delinquent taxes at 30 

the rate of one (1) percent each month, or a fraction thereof, from the date when 31 

due until the date paid. 32 

 33 

B. Promptly thereafter the Finance Director shall notify the delinquent taxpayer in 34 

writing and demand payment thereof of such estimated taxes, penalty and interest.  35 

(c) Such estimated amounts shall thereupon become an assessment, and such 36 

assessment shall be final and due and payable from the taxpayer to the Town 37 

thirty (30) days from the date of the notice and demand; provided, however, that 38 

within said thirty-day period the delinquent taxpayer may petition the Finance 39 

Director in writing for review of the assessment as provided in the applicable 40 

provisions of this Title. The filing of a petition shall not toll the accrual of interest 41 

on the amount of taxes due.  42 

 43 

3-4-18:  REVIEW BY FINANCE DIRECTOR: 44 

 45 
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A. Petitions. Petitions submitted to the Finance Director shall be in writing and 1 

shall contain a statement of facts and reasons for and the amount of the requested 2 

changes in the assessment or decision to deny or reduce a refund claim, and shall 3 

otherwise comply with the applicable rules promulgated by the Finance Director 4 

relating to petitions and hearings.  5 

 6 

B. Time limit for filing petitions. Petitions shall be submitted to the Finance 7 

Director within thirty (30) days from the date of the assessment or decision to 8 

deny or reduce a refund claim. If a petition is not submitted within this time, the 9 

assessment or decision is final and no further review is available.  10 

 11 

C. Notice of hearing. The Finance Director shall notify the taxpayer in writing of 12 

the time and place within the Town fixed for hearing.  13 

 14 

D.  Hearings. A hearing, if any, shall be conducted in accordance with applicable 15 

rules promulgated by the Finance Director relating to petitions and hearings.  16 

 17 

E. Finance Director may appoint designee. A hearing, if any, shall be before the 18 

Finance Director or its designee, who is authorized to administer oaths, to take 19 

testimony, to hear arguments, and to issue all necessary and appropriate orders 20 

and decisions.  21 

 22 

F. Burden of proof. The burden of proof that sales of lodging upon which refunds 23 

of taxes are claimed, or for which modifications or cancellations of assessments 24 

are sought, are exempt from or not subject to taxation under this Chapter shall be 25 

on the taxpayer and such proof shall be by a preponderance of evidence.  26 

 27 

G.  Final order or decision. The final order or decision of the Finance Director or 28 

its designee shall be in writing and notice thereof shall be mailed to the taxpayer 29 

forthwith.  30 

 31 

3-4-19: REVIEW OF FINANCE DIRECTOR’S FINAL ORDER OR DECISION. 32 

 33 

A. Should the taxpayer be aggrieved by a final order or decision of the Finance 34 

Director, the taxpayer may proceed to have same reviewed under Colorado Rules 35 

of Civil Procedure 106(a)(4) by the district court for the fifth judicial district of 36 

the state. The petition or complaint for review must be filed within thirty (30) 37 

days from the date of the final order or decision. Any party, including the Town, 38 

may appeal the final order or decision of the Finance Director and, also, the 39 

decision of the district court (or such other tribunal having jurisdiction), using all 40 

judicial, appellate, and extraordinary proceedings available.  41 

 42 

B.  Before filing a petition or complaint for review under Colorado Rules of Civil 43 

Procedure 106(a)(4), the taxpayer shall file with the Finance Director a bond in 44 

twice the amount of the taxes, interest and other charges audited and stated in the 45 

final order or decision of the Finance Director, with surety as is provided in other 46 
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cases of appeal, or may deposit lawful money of the United States in the same 1 

manner as herein provided.  2 

 3 

3-4-20:  TAX LIEN. 4 

 5 

A. The tax imposed by this Chapter, together with the interest and penalties herein 6 

provided and the costs of collection which may be incurred, shall be and, until 7 

paid, remain a first and prior lien superior to all other liens upon the goods, 8 

merchandise, furniture and fixtures, tools and equipment of any taxpayer, or used 9 

by any taxpayer in conducting his business under lease, title retaining contract or 10 

other contract arrangement, within the Town and shall take precedence on all such 11 

property over other liens or claims of whatsoever kind or nature and may be 12 

foreclosed by seizing under distraint warrant and selling so much of said goods, 13 

merchandise, furniture and fixtures, tools and equipment as may be necessary to 14 

discharge said lien.  15 

 16 

B. The real or personal property of an owner who has made a bona fide lease to a 17 

taxpayer shall be exempt from the lien created in this section (1) if such property 18 

can reasonably be identified from the lease description and (2) if the lessee is 19 

given no right to become the owner of the property leased. This exemption shall 20 

be effective from the date of the execution of the lease until its termination if the 21 

lease is filed or recorded, within ten (10) days after the execution of the lease, 22 

with either the executive director of the state department of revenue or the clerk 23 

and recorder of the Town. Where the lessor and lessee are blood relatives, 24 

relatives by law, or have twenty-five (25) percent or more common ownership, a 25 

lease between them shall not be considered bona fide for the purpose of this 26 

section.  27 

 28 

C. Any taxpayer who is in possession of property under the terms of a lease, 29 

which property is exempt from lien as provided in this section, may be required 30 

by the manager to make return of and pay over taxes collected at more frequent 31 

intervals than monthly, or may be required to furnish security for the proper 32 

payment of taxes whenever the collection of taxes appears to be in jeopardy.  33 

 34 

3-4-21:  SALE UPON DISTRAINT: 35 

  36 

A. Causes. The Finance Director may issue a warrant directed to the Summit 37 

County Sheriff , sometimes in this section referred to collectively as “agent,” 38 

commanding the agent to distrain, seize and sell the goods, merchandise, furniture 39 

and fixtures, tools and equipment of, or used by, the taxpayer, except such 40 

personal property as is exempted from execution and sale by any statute of the 41 

United States, for the payment of the tax due together with penalties and interest 42 

accrued thereon and cost of execution, including thirty dollars ($30.00) for every 43 

warrant issued under this section, upon the happening of any one (1) of the 44 

following:  45 
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(1) When any deficiency in tax is not paid within thirty (30) days from the 1 

Finance Director’s final decision thereon and no petition for review from such 2 

determination has been filed with the district court for the fifth judicial district 3 

within the period of time allowed by law for such review;  4 

(2) When any amount of tax, penalty or interest is not paid within thirty (30) days 5 

from the mailing or personal service of demand for payment thereof and no 6 

protest thereof has been filed with the Finance Director within said period; or  7 

(3) Immediately upon making of a jeopardy assessment or of the issuance of a 8 

demand for payment, as provided in this section.  9 

 10 

B. Notices. The agent charged with the collection shall make or cause to be made 11 

an account of the property distrained, a copy of which, signed by the agent 12 

making such distraint, shall be served, by leaving it with the owner or possessor 13 

of the property or with some member of such person’s family over the age of 14 

eighteen (18) years, or at the person’s usual place of abode or, if the person is a 15 

business entity within the Town, with any officer, manager, accountant, 16 

bookkeeper, general agent, registered agent, or agent for process, together with a 17 

copy of said warrant stating the sum demanded. In lieu of the foregoing 18 

provisions of this subsection for serving said account and warrant, if the owner or 19 

possessor cannot be readily located, or has no dwelling or place of business within 20 

the Town, the account and warrant may be served by mailing by certified mail to 21 

the last known address of the owner or possessor. Said agent shall cause to be 22 

published a notice of the time and place of sale, together with a description of the 23 

property to be sold, in some newspaper of general circulation within the Town 24 

and the agent shall cause such notice to be publicly posted at the location of the 25 

property and place of sale, at the Denver courthouse, and in at least two (2) other 26 

places within the Town. The taxpayer and those having possession of, or of public 27 

record a security interest in, the property shall be notified of the time and place of 28 

sale either in person or by certified mail, or, if that is impractical, by first class 29 

mail. The time fixed for the sale shall not be less than ten (10) days nor more than 30 

sixty (60) days from the date of such notification, and notification by mail shall be 31 

presumed upon mailing.  32 

 33 

C. Management of sale. Said sale may be adjourned from time to time by said 34 

agent if he deems it advisable but not for a time to exceed in all ninety (90) days 35 

from the date first fixed for the sale. When any property is advertised for sale 36 

under distraint as aforesaid, the agent making the seizure shall proceed to sell 37 

such property at public auction, offering the same at not less than a fair minimum 38 

price, including the expenses of making the seizure, storing the property and of 39 

advertising the sale, and if the amount bid for the property at the sale is not equal 40 

to the fair minimum price so fixed, the agent conducting the sale may declare the 41 

same to be purchased by him for the Town. The property so purchased may be 42 

sold by the agent under such terms as the Finance Director may approve or 43 

declared to be surplus property subject to disposition by the Finance Director of 44 

general services. In any case of distraint for the payment of taxes, the property so 45 

distrained shall be restored to the owner or possessor if, prior to the sale, the 46 
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amount due is paid together with the fees and other charges, or the property may 1 

be so redeemed before sale by any person having a legal or equitable interest in 2 

the property.  3 

 4 

D. Certificate of title; return of surplus. In all cases of sale, the agent making the 5 

sale shall issue a certificate of sale to each purchaser, and such certificate shall be 6 

prima facie evidence of the right of the agent to make such sale and conclusive 7 

evidence of the regularity of the proceedings in making the sale and shall transfer 8 

to the purchaser all right, title and interest in and to the property sold. Any surplus 9 

remaining above the taxes, interest, penalties, costs and expenses of making the 10 

seizure and of advertising the sale shall be returned upon demand made within 11 

one (1) year from the sale to the owner. Surplus remaining at the end of one (1) 12 

year from the sale shall be deposited to the general fund.  13 

 14 

E. Filing of notice of lien. Any agent to whom warrant has been issued may serve 15 

a notice of lien in such form as the Finance Director may prescribe with the 16 

person in possession of any personal property or rights to property, without regard 17 

to its use in the business of the taxpayer, belonging to the taxpayer or file said 18 

notice with the secretary of state and the clerk and recorder, and the service or 19 

filing of such notice shall operate to perfect a lien upon such personal property or 20 

rights to property from the date of such service or filing. The Finance Director 21 

may release said lien as to any part or all of the property or rights to property 22 

covered by any such lien upon such terms as he may deem proper.  23 

 24 

F. Recurring distraint. If any taxpayer liable for the payment of any tax pursuant 25 

to this Chapter repeatedly fails, neglects, or refuses to pay said tax within the time 26 

required by this Chapter and the Finance Director has been required to issue 27 

distraint warrants to enforce the collection of the tax due from such taxpayer, the 28 

Finance Director is authorized to assess and collect the amount of the taxes due, 29 

together with all interest and penalties thereon provided by law, and also an 30 

additional penalty of one hundred dollars ($100.00) each for the second and 31 

following distraint warrant regarding the taxpayer that is issued by the Finance 32 

Director pursuant to this Chapter.  33 

 34 

G. When collection in jeopardy. If the Finance Director finds that collection of the 35 

tax will be jeopardized by delay, in his discretion, he may declare the taxable 36 

period immediately terminated, determine the tax, and issue notice and demand 37 

for payment thereof; and having done so, the tax shall be due and payable 38 

forthwith, and the Finance Director may proceed immediately to collect such tax 39 

by distraint, levy and sale or as otherwise provided in this section. Collection by 40 

seizure and sale may be stayed if the taxpayer gives such security for payment as 41 

shall be satisfactory to the Finance Director. The taxpayer or other person entitled 42 

to notice under this Title may request a hearing in writing before the Finance 43 

Director regarding the jeopardy determination and the amount of the assessment. 44 

A request for hearing must be made within seven (7) days after the notice and 45 

demand for payment or distraint warrant is issued. The hearing shall be held 46 
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within fifteen (15) days of the request. The hearing shall be informal and need not 1 

comply with the requirements of the applicable provisions of this Title, nor with 2 

the applicable rules and regulations promulgated by the Finance Director relating 3 

to hearings. The burden of proof shall be on the taxpayer or other person 4 

requesting the hearing, and such proof shall be by a preponderance of evidence. 5 

The Finance Director shall enter his decision within thirty (30) days after the 6 

hearing and shall furnish a copy to the taxpayer or other person requesting the 7 

hearing. If the taxpayer is aggrieved by the decision of the Finance Director, the 8 

taxpayer may seek review pursuant to the applicable provisions of this Title. A 9 

request for hearing under this section shall not stay collection proceedings unless 10 

such request is accompanied by a bond or other security as shall be satisfactory to 11 

the Finance Director.  12 

 13 

3-4-22:  RELEASE OF LIEN: 14 

 15 

Any lien for taxes as shown on the records of the county clerks and recorders as 16 

herein provided in this Chapter shall, upon the payment of all taxes, penalties and 17 

interest covered thereby, be released by the manager of finance in the same 18 

manner as mortgages or judgments are released.  19 

 20 

3-4-23:  MANAGER MAY WAIVE PENALTY: 21 

 22 

The Finance Director is hereby authorized to waive, for good cause shown, any 23 

penalty assessed as in this Chapter provided, and interest imposed in excess of 24 

one (1) percent each month or fraction thereof of the tax deficiency, from the date 25 

the tax is due until the date paid.  26 

 27 

3-4-24:  LICENSE AND TAX IN ADDITION TO ALL OTHER TAXES:  28 

  29 

The tax imposed by this Chapter shall be in addition to all other taxes imposed by 30 

law, except as otherwise provided in this Chapter.  31 

 32 

3-4-25:  VIOLATIONS; EVASION OF COLLECTION OR PAYMENT OF 33 

TAX: 34 

   35 

It shall be a violation of this Chapter for any vendor to refuse to make any return 36 

provided to be made in this Chapter, or to make any false or fraudulent return, or 37 

any false statement in any return, or to fail or refuse to make payment to the 38 

Finance Director of any taxes collected or due the Town, or in any manner to 39 

evade the collection and payment of the tax, or any part thereof, imposed by this 40 

Chapter, or for any person or purchaser to fail or refuse to pay such tax or evade 41 

the payment thereof, or to aid or abet another in any attempt to evade the payment 42 

of the tax imposed by this Chapter. Any corporation making a false return or a 43 

return containing a false statement shall be guilty of a violation of this Chapter. 44 

Any person convicted of a violation of any provision of this Chapter shall be 45 

punished as provided in Section 1-4-1 of this Code. 46 
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 1 

Section 3.  The Town Council finds, determines, and declares that it has the power to 2 

adopt this ordinance pursuant to the authority granted to home rule municipalities by Article XX 3 

of the Colorado Constitution and the powers contained in the Breckenridge Town Charter. 4 

Section 4.  This ordinance shall be published and become effective as provided by 5 

Section 5.9 of the Breckenridge Town Charter. 6 

 INTRODUCED, READ ON FIRST READING, APPROVED AND ORDERED 7 

PUBLISHED IN FULL this ____ day of _____, 2020.  A Public Hearing shall be held at the 8 

regular meeting of the Town Council of the Town of Breckenridge, Colorado on the ___ day of 9 

____, 2020, at 7:30 P.M., or as soon thereafter as possible in the Municipal Building of the 10 

Town. 11 

 12 

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE, a Colorado 13 

     municipal corporation 14 

 15 

 16 

 17 

          By:______________________________ 18 

                                 Eric S. Mamula, Mayor 19 

 20 

ATTEST: 21 

 22 

 23 

 24 

_________________________ 25 

Helen Cospolich, CMC, 26 

Town Clerk 27 

 28 

 29 

 30 

  31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
400-5-3\Accommodation Tax Amendment Ordinance (03-16-20)(Second Reading) 42 
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Memo                                         
To:  Town Council  

From:  Rick G. Holman, Town Manager 

Date:  March 18, 2020 (for March 24, 2020 meeting) 

Subject: Resolution Amending Town Council “Procedures and Rules of Order” 

At the March 10, 2020 Town Council meeting, staff presented the Council with a proposed Town Council 
Rule change that would allow members of the Town Council to participate in a Town Council meeting by 
telephone or other electronic means.  This rule change allows for electronic participation due to a 
Pandemic or personal health reason.  Staff is asking Council to approve the attached Resolution outlining 
the proposed rule change.  Thank you. 
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FOR WORKSESSION/ADOPTION – MARCH 24 1 
 2 

Additions To The Current Town Council Procedures and Rules of Order Are 3 
Indicated By Bold + Double Underline; Deletions By Strikeout 4 

 5 
RESOLUTION NO. ____ 6 

 7 
SERIES 2020 8 

 9 
A RESOLUTION AMENDING THE TOWN COUNCIL “PROCEDURES AND RULES OF 10 
ORDER” CONCERNING A COUNCILMEMBER’S ELECTRONIC PARTICIPATION AT 11 

TOWN COUNCIL MEETINGS 12 
 13 
 WHEREAS, Section 5.1 of the Breckenridge Town Charter provides that the Town 14 
Council shall determine the rules of procedures governing its meetings; and 15 
 16 
 WHEREAS, the Town Council has previously adopted the “Council Procedures and 17 
Rules of Order” (“Rules”) to establish written procedures for conducting Town Council 18 
meetings; and 19 
 20 
 WHEREAS, Section 12.1 of the Rules provides that the Rules may be amended by the 21 
vote of two thirds of the Town Council; and 22 
 23 
 WHEREAS, Section 12.1 of the Rules further provides that all amendments to the Rules 24 
shall be made by resolution; and 25 
 26 

WHEREAS, this resolution was submitted to each member of the Council at least two 27 
weeks in advance of the Council meeting at which the adoption of this resolution was to be 28 
considered. 29 
   30 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 31 
BRECKENRIDGE, COLORADO, as follows: 32 
 33 

Section 1.  Rule 4.15 of the Council Procedures and Rules of Order is amended so as to 34 
read in its entirety as follows: 35 
 36 

4.15 Attendance at Special or Emergency Town Council Meeting By 37 
Telephone or Other Electronic Means. 38 
 39 
A.  A Councilmember may attend a special or emergency meeting of the Town 40 
Council by telephone or other electronic means, including, but not limited to, 41 
audio or video conferencing, if: 42 
 43 
 a. during the meeting all members of the Council may hear each 44 
other and the public who desire to address the Council;  45 
 46 
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. b. the Councilmember attending the meeting by telephone or other 1 
electronic means has received the agenda packet for the meeting; and 2 
 3 
 c. the matter being considered by the Council is not legislative or 4 
quasi-judicial.  5 
 6 
 d. A Councilmember participating in a special or emergency meeting 7 
pursuant to this Section is deemed to be present in person at the meeting.  This 8 
Section does not apply to attendance at a regular Town Council meeting.  9 
 10 
 e. No Councilmember may participate in a special or emergency 11 
meeting pursuant to this Section more than three times in a calendar year. 12 
 13 
A. Purpose. The purpose of this Rule is to specify the circumstances under which a 14 

member of the Town Council may participate in regular, special, or emergency 15 
meetings of the Town Council by telephone or other electronic means of 16 
participation, such as video-conferencing (“Electronic Participation”). 17 
Electronic Participation has inherent limitations because Electronic 18 
Participation effectively precludes a member of the Town Council from 19 
contemporaneously observing documentary information presented during 20 
meetings; from fully evaluating a speaker’s non-verbal language in assessing 21 
veracity or credibility; and from observing non verbal explanations (e.g., 22 
pointing at graphs and charts) during a speaker’s presentation or testimony. 23 
The Town Council finds that these limitations, inherent in Electronic 24 
Participation, may produce inefficiencies in meetings, cause delays, and interfere 25 
with the decision-making process. When used in this Rule, the term “Council 26 
member includes both the Mayor and all other members of the Town Council 27 

B.  Statement of General Policy. A member of the Town Council may participate in   28 
a meeting of the Town Council by electronic means only in accordance with this 29 
Rule. 30 

1.  Pandemic or Personal Health Reason.  31 
 32 
a.  If a Town Council member reasonably determines that his or her personal 33 
attendance at a Town Council meeting would not be prudent due to: (i) a 34 
pandemic affecting the whole Town, or (ii) as a result of the member’s personal 35 
health, such Council member may listen by telephone or other electronic means 36 
to any Council meeting. Such Council member listening via telephone or other 37 
electronic means shall be deemed present for purposes of determining a quorum. 38 
The member of Town Council may not participate nor vote in a quasi-judicial 39 
public hearing; however, the Council member may maintain the electronic 40 
connection and monitor and listen to the hearing. The member of Town Council 41 
may participate and vote in legislative matters. 42 

 43 
b.  Electronic Participation may also be made available to a Town Council 44 
member during an executive session. 45 
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 1 
c.  There is no limit on the number of Town Council meetings at which a Council 2 
member may participate by telephone or other electronic means under this 3 
Section 1. 4 
 5 
d.  The Town Council may discontinue the use of Electronic Participation by one 6 
or more members during a meeting where the participation results in delays or 7 
interference in the meeting process; e.g., where the telephone connection or 8 
connection by other electronic means is repeatedly lost, the quality of the 9 
connection is unduly noisy or otherwise problematic to the conduct of the 10 
meeting, or the listening member is unable to hear speakers using a normal 11 
speaking voice amplified to a level suitable for the meeting audience in 12 
attendance. 13 

 14 
2.  Additional Rules When Electronic Participation Is Allowed. Whenever a 15 
Town Council member is allowed to participate in a Town Council meeting by 16 
telephone or other electronic means pursuant to this Rule, the following 17 
additional rules shall be observed: 18 

  19 
a.  All members of the Town Council must be able to hear one another or 20 
otherwise communicate with one another, and be able to hear all discussion and 21 
testimony in a manner designed to provide maximum notice and participation; 22 
 23 
b.  Members of the public present at the meeting location must be able hear all 24 
discussion, testimony, and votes; 25 
 26 
c.  All votes held at the meeting shall be conducted by roll call. 27 
 28 
3.  Public Notice. To the extent possible, full and timely notice shall be given to 29 
the public setting advising that one or more members of the Town Council may 30 
participate in the meeting electronically. 31 
 32 
4.  Attendance By Electronic Means Does Not Create Vacancy. Participation in a 33 
regular Town Council meeting by telephone or other electronic means in 34 
accordance with this Rule shall not be considered to be a “failure to attend” a 35 
regular Council meeting for determining whether a vacancy in the office of the 36 
Mayor or a Council member has occurred under Section 4.8(b) of the Town 37 
Charter.   38 

 39 
Section 2.  This resolution is effective upon adoption. 40 

 41 
 RESOLUTION APPROVED AND ADOPTED this ___ day of ___, 2020. 42 
 43 
      44 
      45 
  46 
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     TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE 1 
 2 
 3 
 4 
     By:________________________________ 5 
           Eric S. Mamula, Mayor 6 
 7 
ATTEST: 8 
 9 
 10 
 11 
_______________________ 12 
Helen Cospolich  13 
Town Clerk 14 
 15 
APPROVED IN FORM 16 
 17 
 18 
 19 
___________________________ 20 
Town Attorney  Date 21 
 22 
 23 
 24 
 25 
 26 
 27 
 28 
 29 
 30 
 31 
 32 
 33 
 34 
 35 
 36 
 37 
 38 
 39 
 40 
 41 
 42 
 43 
 44 
 45 
 46 
 47 
 48 
 49 
 50 
 51 
 52 
 53 
 54 
 55 
 56 
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1 

Memo                                         

To:  Breckenridge Town Council Members 

From:  Helen Cospolich, Municipal Clerk 

Date:  3/18/2020 

Subject: Municipal Judge Appointment 

Per the Breckenridge Town Charter (Article 8, Section 2), Council must appoint a Presiding Municipal 
Judge every two years. Current Judge Buck Allen has written a letter expressing his interest in being 
reappointed for the next two-year term, which is attached. 
 
Judge Allen has served as the Town’s Municipal Court Judge for the past eleven two-year terms (22 
years), beginning in 1998. Staff has enjoyed an excellent working relationship with Judge Allen and 
recommends his reappointment by Council. 
 
Staff will be available to answer any questions Council may have about this reappointment. 
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        2725 Bald Mountain Rd. 

        Vail, CO 81657 

        March 3, 2020 

 

Honorable Mayor Mamula and Members of the Breckenridge Town Council 

Town of Breckenridge 

150 Ski Hill Road 

P.O. Box 168 

Breckenridge, CO 80424 

 RE: Municipal Judge 

Honorable Mayor Mamula and Council Members: 

 I would like to express my strong desire to continue as Municipal Judge for the Town of 

Breckenridge. I thoroughly enjoy working for the town and I look forward to continuing as Judge for 

years to come.  I appreciate the first-class staff of Breckenridge and I value our working relationship. 

 I would be happy to answer any questions you may have.  My office phone is 970-479-2131 and 

my cell phone is 970-376-4103.  Thank you for your consideration. 

 

Yours truly, 

 

Buck Allen 
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Town of Breckenridge 
North Water Treatment 
Plant 
Prepared by M Petters/HDR Engineering, Inc. 

 
Finish Water Pump Station Vertical Turbine Pump 
2/25/2020 

 
 
Blend Tank Shroud 02/12/2020

 

February 2020 
 
 

Contractor: 
Moltz Construction, Inc. 

 
Designer: 

HDR Engineering, Inc. 
Tetra Tech 

 
Award Date: 

December 8, 2017 
 

Notice to Proceed: 
December 15, 2017 

 
Notice to Mobilize: 

March 21, 2018 
 

Substantial Completion Date: 
August 3, 2020 

 
 
Original Duration: 867 Days 
 
Days Added by CO: 0 
 
Time Percent Complete: 81.9 % 
 
Cost Percent Complete: 87.2 % 
 
Guaranteed Maximum Price:   

$42,000,000   
Change Order Total:         $2,313,039 
Current Contract Value:     $44,313,039 
 
Invoiced to Date:             $38,634,581 
Cost Growth:          2.4 % 
Town Initiated Improvements   3.1 % 
Total Cost Growth                      5.5 % 
Schedule Growth: 0 Days 
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Schedule and Budget Status 

Moltz Construction Inc. (MCI) has completed work for 
87.2% of the project value within 81.9% of the available 
contract time. Their current schedule update shows 
them completing the contract on time. 

Fourteen Change Orders have been issued 
to date on the project. There have been 27 
Work Change Directives, 33 Change 
Proposal Requests and 30 Field Orders 
initiated on the project. 

Accomplishments/Highlights 
 

Raw Water Pump Station 
 
MCI installed the surge tank butterfly valve. 
 
MCI installed the slide gates in the wet well. 
 
Triangle worked on heat trace and underground 
conduits at the low lift pump station valve vaults. 
 
Triangle pulled the main power cables from the CT 
cabinet and connected power cables to the vertical 
turbine pump motors. 
 
MCI completed installation of the valves and process 
piping in the low lift pumps valve vaults. 
 
MCI continued backfill and compacting around the pump 
station. 
 
MCI completed the raw water process piping in the wet 
well including the concrete pipe supports. 
 
MCI started installing process piping, fitting and valves 
from the vertical turbine pumps to the wet well. 

 
 
 

 
Main Treatment Building 

 
Sierra Blanca continued installing copper 
potable water and gas piping. 
 
Mendoza worked on the canopy roofing at 
the north end of the building. 
 
MCI continued work on installing the support 
angles for the redwood baffle walls in the 
flocculation basins.  
 
Triangle Electric continued installing 
conduits, junction boxes, panel boxes, pulling 
wire and overhead lighting.  
 
Horizon continued installing ductwork. They 
installed radiant heating in the corridors. 

 
MCI installed the pumps and process piping 
in the sedimentation/flocculator pipe gallery. 
 
Triangle Electric continued to pull and 
terminate wire in the MCC room. 
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Finished Water Pump Station 

 
Water Technology Group installed the shafts from the 
motors to the pumps. 
 
MCI continued installing the finish water and backwash 
water process piping in the Pump Station.  
 
MCI completed installing the baffle wall angles and 
redwood planks in Clearwell 1 and 2. 
 
Infinity Welding worked on fitting and welding the surge 
tank and finished water piping in the wet well. 
 
Coblaco continued painting the process pipe. 
 
Moltz and Breckenridge Crane set the last vertical 
turbine pump and motor. 
 

Residuals Building 
 
MCI formed, placed and vibrated the polymer mixing 
equipment pads.  
 
MCI set the centrifuge grating support, stair stringers 
with treads grating and guardrail. 
 
Moltz continued work on the thickened sludge, settled 
sludge and recycle pumps and process piping in the 
pump gallery. 
 
Allman taped and finished drywall. 
 
Triangle Electric installed the conduits. 
 
Moltz and Envirodyne started the gravity thickener. They 
gave an operations class to the Town of Breckenridge. 

 
Main Treatment Building 

 
Moltz continued working on the process 
piping in the filter pipe gallery.  
 
MCI grouted and placed the filter 
underdrains. A representative from Leopold 
gave training and instructions. 
 
MCI continued to install copper compressed 
air piping to the filter influent valves, work 
stations and around the sedimentation 
basins. 
 
Coblaco applied protective coating to the 
drywall. They completed epoxy and 
fiberglass in the PACL room. They applied a 
first coat to the interior hollow metal jambs. 
 
Sierra Blanca installed the water heater. 
 
MCI installed the grating and guardrail on the 
north side of the air handling unit. 
 
MCI and Water Technology Group performed 
startup on the blowers. 
 
MCI continued installing grating and guardrail 
over the sedimentation/flocculator basins. 
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MCI completed installing hollow metal jambs and doors. 
 

Covered  Walkway 
 
Triangle Electric installed overhead lighting and worked 
on the exterior sidewalk heat trace. They installed 
exterior lighting over the walkway entry. 
 
Horizon installed the heat pump outside of the covered 
walkway. They installed the split unit in the covered 
walkway. 

Blending Tank 
 
Mendoza started the framing installing the timber 
columns, the glulam beams and joists for the shroud. 
 

Site 
 

Record snowfall fell on the site for the month of 
February. MCI moved snow with the 35 ton haul truck to 
west of Stan Miller Drive. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Administration Building 

 
Sierra Blanca installed the water heater, 
laboratory dishwasher and plumbed the 
condensate drains. They worked on copper 
potable water and gas piping to the 
laboratory flume. 
 
Allman installed the ceiling tiles in the 
suspended ceiling grid in the men’s and 
ladies’ bathrooms.  
 
Triangle installed the overhead lights in the 
bathrooms. 
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Construction Progress Photos 

Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 

02/04/2020 – Raw Water Pump Station Main Breaker 02/04/2020 – Clearwell Baffle Wall 

 
 

 
 

Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 
 

02/04/2020 – MTB Radiant Heat 

 

 

 

02/05/2020 – MTB Filters Grouting 
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Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 
02/05/2020 – Finished Water Pump Station Pipe 

Fitting 02/06/2020 – PACL Room Fiberglass and Epoxy 

  

Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 
 

02/06/2020 – MTB Electricians 02/10/2020 – Digging Out 
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Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 

02/10/2020 -  Flocculation Basin 1 Baffle Walls 02/11/2020 – Raw Water Pump Station Valve 
Vault Heat Trace 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 

02/11/2020 – MTB Gravity Thickener 02/11/2020 – MTB HVAC Unit Access Ladder  
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Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 
02/12/2020 -  Raw Water Pump Station 

Process Piping 02/13/2020 – MTB Aluminum Grating Supports 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 

02/17/2020 – Raw Water Pump Station Vertical 
Turbine Pump Power Cables 

02/18/2020 – Administration Building Water 
Heater 
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Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 

02/19/2020 -  MTB Filter Underdrains 02/19/2020 – MTB Removing Snow From Roof 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 

02/20/2020 – MTB Sierra Blanca Copper 
Potable Water Pipe 

02/24/2020 – Finished water Pump Station 
Torqueing Bolts 

  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

73



 

  
  

 

   -10 

Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 

02/25/2020 -  MTB MCC Room HVAC  02/26/2020 – MTP Process Pipe Supports 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Town of Breckenridge – North Water Treatment Plant 

02/27/2020 – Hauling Snow 02/28/2020 – Blending Tank Shroud Platform 
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Upcoming Activities/Milestones Planned Finish Date 

 
Administration Building: Mendoza will install gutters at 
the south wall. 
 

Ongoing 

 
Residuals Building: Horizon will install the louvers and 
dampers. They will install unit heaters and the 
condenser unit. 
 

03/26/2020 

 
Residual Building: Sierra Blanca will install the 
potable water service, water heater and safety 
showers. 
 

4/2/2020 

 
Residuals Building: MCI will install the polymer skids. 
 

3/3/2020 

 
Residual Building: MCI continue working on process 
piping in the pump gallery, the stairwell, polymers 
system and to the centrifuge. 
 

4/2/2020 

 
Residuals Building: MCI will install the conveyor 
support beams and the bridge crane. 
 

3/26/2020 
 

 
Raw Water Pump Station: MCI will install the 
remaining vertical turbine pump and motor. 
 

3/20/2020 

 
Raw Water Pump Station: MCI will complete the 
process piping from the wet well to the pumps. 
 

 
3/20/2020 

 

75



 

  
  

 

   -12 

 
Raw Water Pump Station: MCI will start small 
diameter piping. 
 

3/27/2020 

 
Raw Water Pump Station: MCI will install the low lift 
pump station submersible pumps with related piping. 
 

4/2/2020 
 

 
Raw Water Pump Station: MCI will continue to import 
fill and backfill. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 

 
Raw Water Pump Station: Triangle Electric will 
continue conduit install, wire pulling and termination. 
 

 
Ongoing 

 
Main Treatment Building: Coblaco will continue to 
paint the drywall, door jambs, doors and piping. They 
will coat the Fluoride room concrete. 
 

Ongoing 

 
Main Treatment Building: Sierra Blanca will continue 
installing copper piping and natural gas piping. 
Horizon will continue installing ductwork and exhaust 
fans. Triangle Electric will continue installing conduits. 
 

Ongoing 

 
Filter Pipe Gallery: MCI will form and cast the 
concrete pipe supports. 
 

3/11/2020 
 

 
Main Treatment Building: MCI will install the filter 
troughs. 
 

3/20/2020 
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Main Treatment Building: Mendoza will continue work 
on the canopy roofs. 
 

3/12/2020 
 

 
Main Treatment Building: MCI will install the PACL 
system with related piping. 
 

3/17/2020 

 

Flocculation/Sedimentation Basin: MCI will continue 
installing the redwood baffle walls and flocculation 
paddles. 

3/20/2020 

 

Finished Water Pump Station: MCI will disinfect the 
Clearwells and the Wet well. 

3/12/2020 

 
Finish Water Pump Station: MCI will volume leak test 
the Clearwells and wet well. 
 

4/4/2020 

 

Mixing Basins: MCI will install the Mixers. 

 

3/12/2020 

 

Main Treatment Building: MCI will install the 
flocculator/sedimentation basin, PACL room and filter 
pipe gallery walkways steel supports and grating. 

 

4/3/2020 

 

Blend Tank: Mendoza will continue with building the 
shroud. 

Ongoing 
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Site Work: MCI will excavate and lay the sanitary 
sewer piping from the Main Treatment Building and 
the reaming storm sewer piping to the overflow pond. 

 

4/10/2020 
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Memo                                         

To:  Breckenridge Town Council Members 

From:  Corrie Burr 

Date:  March 17, 2020 for meeting of March 28, 2020 

Subject: Breckenridge Child Care Closure Update 

This is an update of the closures and plans for the Breckenridge child care centers.   
 
All in town child care centers are following the lead of Summit School District, so they are currently closed 
through April 3rd.  This is a fluid closure with great potential of an extension.   
 
All four child care centers are at the same stage: they have committed to pay staff up to 1 month of closure 
and they are waiving family fees for the 3-week closure. The centers will not have the means to waive fees 
and continue to cover costs and pay teachers if the closure extends beyond the 3 week closure.  The Town 
will continue to pay the centers their scholarship awards during this period. 
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Housing Committee Notes  
 
Date: March 10th, 2020 
 
Time: 1:30pm – 3:00pm 
 
Location: 150 Ski Hill Road, Breckenridge, CO 80424 
 
Attendees:  Gary Gallagher, Wendy Wolfe, Dick Carleton, Rick Holman, Mark Truckey, Laurie Best, Nichole 
Rex, Julia Puester 
 
 
Programs and Strategies: 

• Monthly Housing Helps Report: 

o A total of 25 valid applications have been submitted as of March 10th.  Of these 
applications, 20 are located in unincorporated Summit County (Upper Blue Basin), 5 are 
in the Town of Blue River, and 2 are in the Town of Breckenridge.  Only one application 
has been funded (Silver Shekel acquisition). At the end of March, the next two 
applications should be funded which includes a purchase in French Creek and a Now 
Colorado unit (see Exhibit A).  
 

o Staff also informed the committee that we have communicated with the higher priced 
Housing Helps applicants regarding the prioritized funding for more units at a lower price 
in order to serve a broader range of the community need.  The applicants understood and 
are still on the list for future consideration. 

 

o Staff also discussed the issue of long time locals retiring in their homes and the committee 
was supportive of applying our current retirement policy to the Housing Helps deed 
restriction light, because these units are at risk of converting to non-local housing when 
the longtime local sells. Our current retirement policy is, a person who is 60 years of age 
may partially retire, working an average of 15 hours per week for a business located in 
and serving Summit County, if they have lived in the Unit for 5 full years and have worked 
in Summit County for 15 consecutive years prior to partial retirement.  A person who is 65 
years of age may fully retire if they have lived in the unit for 5 full years and have worked 
in Summit County for 10 consecutive years prior to full retirement. A person over 65 years 
of age shall remain a Resident 10 regardless of his or her working status, so long as he or 
she has owned and occupied the Unit for 11 a time period of not less than seven (7) years. 
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• Monthly Buy-Down Report: 

o Since launching the program in July of 2019, 11 units have been purchased as a part of 
the Buy Down program.  Of the 11 units, 4 have been re-sold (see Exhibit B).  Within the 
last week, we have been advised by our realtor that there is increased interest in the Now 
Colorado units and the Wildflower unit. They are being shown frequently to locals and 
investors.  Currently, the projected average Town investment per unit is $51,048 ($31,195 
per bedroom).  To review the updated buy down report, please see Exhibit B.  We are 
closing on two additional units in the Highlands Green lodge on March 31st.  
 

 

Policy Updates:  
• Policy 24 Housing Code Discussion: 

o During the committee meeting, staff presented the first version of Policy 24 housing code 
changes for discussion.  The committee was supportive of implementing an absolute 
policy that requires an applicant to provide housing for a percentage of the employees a 
project generates (employee mitigation).  The following are specific comments that the 
committee provided regarding the revisions to Policy 24: 
 The committee supported exempting single family and duplex applications, but 

want us to continue to look into these types of development impacts.  
 The committee supported a mitigation rate of 35 percent.  
 The committee supported changing the on-site unit requirement from 50 percent 

to 25 percent.  
 The committee supported exempting the conservation district from the on-site 

unit requirement and allowing those projects to meet 100 percent of their 
housing requirement with off-site units.  

 The committee wanted to ensure that units provided for the housing requirement 
are livable and in good condition.  

 The committee did not support allowing applicants to “bank units.”  If allowed, 
this would give a developer the option to build units upfront and deed restrict 
them periodically as they submit for development permits to meet their 
requirement.  In many cases, this does not result in net new units because the 
units are already being used for employee housing 

 The committee supported eliminating land in-lieu as an option for mitigation. 
 The committee was open to considering a 10 percent density bonus when a 

project provides 25% of their hosing requirement on-site.  Currently, residential 
has an option for a 10 percent density bonus if they construct deed restricted 
housing, but commercial does not.   This will make it more difficult, as an example, 
for a restaurant to construct on-site units than for a hotel to construct on-site 
units because the hotel could receive a density bonus, but a restaurant could not.  

 The committee requested that we look at employee generation rates specifically 
for day use, fractional ownership, and different levels of service for both 
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accommodation uses and restaurants as we continue our research for an updated 
employee generation study.   

  

Staff will be incorporating the committee comments into the council discussion on the revisions to 
Policy 24 Housing Code.   

 

Development and Construction Updates:  
• Alta Verde: 

o Staff provided a brief update on the Alta Verde.  On March 17th, staff presented to DOLA 
regarding the $650,000 grant application for solar panels which will be essential in 
achieving net zero status.  We should hear back regarding their decision in a few weeks.  
Additionally, the applicant meeting with CHFA for the 9% LIHTC application is scheduled 
for May 5th. 
 

Financials/Proforma: No Update 
What’s Happening in Housing: No Update 
Other Matters: No Update 
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EXHIBIT A. 

 

83



 
 

 

TOWN OF BRECKENRIDGE - 150 SKI HILL RD. PO BOX 168, BRECKENRIDGE, CO 80424 - 970-453-2251 

 

EXHIBIT B. 
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Memo                                          

To:  Breckenridge Town Council Members 

From:  Rick Holman, Town Manager 

Date:  3/19/2020 

Subject: Committee Reports 

 

No committee reports were submitted for this meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Committees*   Representative  Report Status 

Summit Stage Advisory Board Jennifer Pullen No Meeting/Report 
Police Advisory Committee Chief Jim Baird No Meeting/Report 
CMC Advisory Committee Rick Holman No Meeting/Report 
Recreation Advisory Committee Scott Reid No Meeting/Report 
Breckenridge Events Committee   Shannon Haynes No Meeting/Report 
Transit and Parking Advisory Committee   Jennifer Pullen No Meeting/Report 
Communications Haley Littleton No Meeting/Report 
 
*Note:  Reports provided by the Mayor and Council Members are listed in the Council agenda.   
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Memo                                         

To:  Town Council  

From:  Julia Puester, AICP, Assistant Community Development Director 

Date:  March 17, 2020 (for March 24, 2020 meeting) 

Subject: Small Cell Deployment Options 

Small Cell Facilities Background 

After the Federal Communications Commission (FCC) passed a regulation September 26, 2018 
pertaining to the deployment of 5G technology in municipal rights of ways (ROW). The new rules, making 
5G readily accessible and removing barriers to 5G deployment became effective April 15, 2019 and apply 
to all municipalities nationwide.  This regulation limits aesthetic review and requirements (including 
undergrounding and historic/environmental requirements) to those that are reasonable, comparable to 
requirements for other rights-of-way users, and published in advance. Further, this allows for unlimited 
access to small cell applications from providers in the Town Rights of Way. 

In order to have regulations regarding design guidelines for small cell infrastructure, the Town had to have 
Design Standards published prior to the April 15, 2019 effective date of the new FCC rules.  The Town’s 
Design Standards were published on April 11, 2019.  The Town also adopted modifications to Policy 50A 
Wireless Communication Facilities in conformance with the FCC order. 

The Town has not yet received any small cell applications however, we have had recent conversations 
with Verizon on potential incoming applications and have signed the Master License Agreement with 
AT&T, as required by law, to allow them to locate in the Town Rights of Way.  We have not received a 
formal application from either of these providers however, staff has been working closely with AT&T to 
locate on the Welcome Center roof as an alternative to a pole location near the Blue River Plaza. 

In an attempt to achieve a cohesive approach for providers to co-locate, with the goal to minimize visual 
impact specifically in the Town’s National Registered Historic District, and utilize the Town’s new fiber 
network, staff issued a Request for Information (RFI) in December 2019.  Six companies responded to 
the RFI and responses were reviewed by staff and Tim Scott, the Town’s fiber consultant. Reponses 
have been narrowed to two finalists. Before moving forward, staff would like to confirm Council’s 
expectations related to the goals and objectives of this project.  

Goals and Objectives 

Town Goals and Objectives for Small Cell infrastructure are to: 

 Minimize the visual appearance of small cell wireless infrastructure: 

 Reduce the number of new individual structures (e.g. poles) by locating in this order of 
preference 

o Locating on Town owned buildings 
o Locating on traffic signals 
o Replacing existing light poles 
o New poles; 

 Minimize noise and light; 

 Improve cellular coverage (both near term improved 4G/LTE and longer term support carriers 
5G goals; 
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 Potentially provide Wi-Fi in the Town commercial core; 

 Meet and/or exceed the minimum requirements in the Town’s Small Cell Design Guidelines; 

 Support LTE-based Public Safety; 

 Have a privately funded system; 

 Bring revenue to the Town from utilization of the Town’s fiber assets or leasing vertical assets; 
 

Council Questions: 
Staff has the following questions for Town Council: 
 

 Does the Council want to proceed with a partnership with an outside vendor to facilitate small 
cell deployment?  

 Is Council supportive of the installation of 25-30’ smart poles in the Historic District and alleyways 
when all other options have been exhausted?   
 

Staff will be available at the meeting to answer any questions that the Town Council may have. 
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Memo 

To: Town Council 

From: Jessie Burley, Sustainability Coordinator 

Date: 3/24/2020 

Subject: Renewable Energy Update 
 

 

Milestone 100% Renewable Energy in Municipal Facilities:  

 

As part of the Summit Community Climate Action Plan, the Town has a goal to achieve 100% 

renewable electricity in municipal facilities by 2025. To meet this goal, the Town has signed an 

agreement with Colorado’s largest community solar developer, Pivot Energy, to subscribe to 3.6 

MW of community solar capacity. This partnership provides the remaining amount of clean energy 

currently needed for Breckenridge to achieve 100% renewable electricity for its municipal facilities 

by 2025 (5 years ahead of schedule). The town is expected to save more than $700,000 in energy 

costs over the duration of the 20-year agreement without incurring any upfront costs. The gardens 

are expected to come online in 2020. New town construction projects, including the Water 

Treatment Plant II, are not calculated in these totals. Staff continues to pursue partnerships for 

community solar, energy efficiency opportunities, and roof-top projects to offset future energy 

demand.  

Strategies to Achieve 100% Renewable Electricity Community-Wide by 2035:  

Solarize Summit: In partnership with the High Country Conservation Center (HC3), the Town is 

offering the Solarize Summit program again in 2020. Bulk purchase discounts and rebates will be 

offered by the solar company and the Town respectively.  Breckenridge homeowners and 

businesses must sign up for the program April 15th- June 30th, 2020. Any homeowner in Summit 

County can participate in the program, however only Summit County Government, Frisco, and 

Breckenridge provide additional incentives for their residents. Rebates of $1,500 are limited to 30 

for Breckenridge residents. The Breckenridge kick-off workshop will take place April 15th at the 

Breckenridge Recreation Center from 5:30-7:30.  

Community Solar: Businesses and homeowners can also subscribe to community solar with Pivot 

Energy. Those that enroll will receive monthly savings on their electric bills through Xcel clean 

power credits. These credits can then be used to offset their monthly bill from the kWh produced 

by the solar garden. Community members can find more information on enrollment on the Town’s 

Climate Action site.   
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https://highcountryconservation.org/wp-content/uploads/2019/03/hc3-climateactionplan_final.pdf
https://highcountryconservation.org/climate-change-colorado/solarize-summit/
https://www.pivotenergy.net/arcadia/
https://www.pivotenergy.net/arcadia/
https://www.sustainablebreck.com/climate-action


Budget: 

The Town is offering $45,000 worth of incentives for homeowners and businesses enrolled in 

Solarize Summit. Individual or business community solar subscriptions with Pivot Energy have no 

costs for the Town, homeowners or businesses and could offer significant savings depending on 

energy use.  

 

No action is needed by Council at this time. 
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Memo 
To: Town Council 

From: Jessie Burley, Sustainability Coordinator 

Date: 3/24/2020 

Subject: Mountain IDEAL Update 
 
 
 
Overview: The Town is pursuing the Mountain IDEAL sustainable destination certification as 
one of the strategies to achieve goal #4 under the Destination Management Plan. The 
Mountain IDEAL certification is recognized by the Global Sustainable Tourism Council (GSTC) as 
a sustainability standard and certification program for mountain resort communities. It 
provides a framework of sustainable tourism criteria and performance indicators that support 
mountain destinations in elevating sustainability performance, stakeholder engagement, 
collaboration, and recognition as a global leader. The Town of Vail received certification in 2018 
and Jackson Hole is pursing the certification currently.  
 

Certification Timeline: 

• Summer 2019: pre assessment period 
• Winter/Spring 2020: data collection 
• May 1st: report/data due to GSTC/Green Destinations 
• June 1st- 6th: onsite audit by GSTC/Green Destinations 
• Summer 2020: respond to auditor’s remarks as needed to obtain certification 
• Ongoing bi-annual meetings of Mountain IDEAL Advisory Committee to ensure 

compliance and recertification  
 

 

No Council action is requested as this is just an update of the Town’s efforts to move towards 
taking a more prominent leadership position among mountain towns as a destination 
committed to responsible and sustainable tourism. 
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